v
FOUR CORNERS
HARTER SCHOOL
C SCHOO

Board of Directors’ Meeting

Tuesday, February 7, 2023
12:00 PM




Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

Thursday — February 7, 2023 | 12:00 p.m.

Four Corners Charter School
817 Bill Beck Blvd.
Kissimmee, FL 34744

Board Meeting Agenda

Call to Order
Roll Call

l. Administrative
e Approval of Board Meeting Minutes of October 7, 2022

Il. CSUSA Reports
e State Director Report
e  Fall Survey Results

i Financials
e Q1 FY23 Financial Review Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

e Q2 FY23 Financial Review Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
e FY23 Budget Amendment Survey 2/3

e Q2 FY23 Financial Review Four Corners Charter School

e Title I Plan

Iv. Old Business

V. New Business
e QOut of Field Waivers
e Special Magistrate Policy

VI. Public Comments

VIL. Adjournment

<« Next Meeting: Tuesday — May 2, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. »




BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Name of Foundation: Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
Board Meeting: Tuesday — October 4, 2022
School(s): Four Corners Charter School

The minutes of Sunshine Law meetings need not be verbatim transcripts of the meeting. These minutes are a brief summary of
the events of the meeting.

Date: Start End Next Meeting: Next time: Prepared by:

October 4, 2022 2:10 pm 2:54 pm February 7, 2023 2:00 pm M. Llanes/R. Weaver

Meeting Location:

Osceola School District — 817 Bill Beck Blvd., Kissimmee, FL 34744

Attended by:

Board Members: Other Attendees:
Julius Melendez, Director Dr. Eddie Ruiz, FL State Director
Mollie Cunningham, Director Jodi Evans, CSUSA Deputy Director
Jon Arguello, Director Yurik Rodriguez, Sr. Accountant for Osceola School District
Absent: Chris Kober - Facilities
Teresa Castillo, Chair Joe Krusick — MKA (Auditors)
James Miller, Director Rich Cassidy — MKA (Auditors)
Tanya Snellings, Charter Office, Osceola School District
Rita Weaver, Sr. Director of Board Governance
Maggie Llanes, Executive Coordinator for Board Governance

CALL TO ORDER
e Pursuant to public notice, the meeting commenced at 2:10 pm with a Call to Order by Julius
Melendez. Roll call was taken, and quorum established.

l. ADMINISTRATIVE
Approval of Board Meeting Minutes of August 9, 2022
Approval of Board Meeting Minutes of August 25, 2022

e The board reviewed the meeting minutes from the August 9, 2022, and August 25, 2022 board
meetings for Four Corners Charter School, Inc.

MOTION: Motion was made by Mollie Cunningham and seconded by John Arguello to approve the
minutes of the August 9, 2022, and August 25, 2022, for Four Corners Charter School, Inc., as presented.
Motion was approved unanimously. (3-0, 2 absent)

1. CSUSA Reports

State Director Report

e Dr. Eddie Ruiz reported to the board that there were only minor leaking after Hurricane lan
and that the school followed the district on closure and reopening with the majority of
students and staff in attendance. The board discussed the process for hurricane make up days,
if necessary.

e The board reviewed the FY22 school grade goal and initiatives in comparison with the FY23
goals and initiatives which included discussion on the standards and accountability
monitoring taking place at the school. All questions were answered by Area 3 Deputy Director
Jodi Evans and Principal Thompson.

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.



Meeting Minutes cont’d
October 4, 2022
Page 2

MOTION: Motion was made by Mollie Cunningham and seconded by Julius Melendez to accept the State
Director’s Report for Four Corners Charter School, Inc., as presented. Motion was approved
unanimously. (3-0, 2 absent)

FY23 TSIA Plan

e The board reviewed the FY23 TSIA Plan for Osceola that was submitted to the Florida DOE.
The plan is currently under review at FDOE for approval.

e The board discussed that the goals of the TSIA bringing up minimum salaries to $47, 500 and
wanted to be sure that they were also considering those teachers with multiple years of
experience and ensuring that they too are being appropriately compensated. The TSIA plan
had very specific structured instructions on allocations.

e Denise Thompson shared with the board that the school’s budget stipends and other
incentives to be able to compensate effective and experienced teachers.

MOTION: Motion was made by Mollie Cunningham and seconded by Jon Arguello to ratify the FY23
TSIA Plan, for Four Corners Charter School, Inc., as presented. Motion was approved unanimously. (3-
0, 2 absent)

. FINANCIALS
e FY22 FCCS and FCCS, Inc. Audited Results

o The board reviewed the FY22 FCCS Audited Results with auditors Joe Krusick and Rich
Cassidy from Moss, Krusick, and Associates, LLC. The FCCS, Inc. Audited results would be
presented at the next meeting as those results were not finalized. Mr. Cassidy reviewed
all the required elements and disclosures of the audit and advised that the audit was an
unqualified opinion.

o Rich Cassidy reviewed the audited results with the board and answered all their
questions.

o Board Member Melendez requested “Accrued Payroll and Other Expenses” broken out
into two-line items, “Accrued Payroll” and “Other Expenses” to be able to understand
the cash commitment of payroll.

MOTION: Motion was made by Mollie Cunningham and seconded by Jon Arguello to accept the FY22
FCCS Audited Results for Four Corners Charter School, Inc., as presented. Motion was approved
unanimously. (3-0, 2 absent)

V. OLD BUSINESS
There was none.

V. NEW BUSINESS
Door Entry Upgrade Project
e The board reviewed the proposal for the vestibule front door.
e Chris Kober from Facilities updated the board on the scope of work for the school on this
project and presented the best bid out of three obtained.

MOTION: Motion was made by Mollie Cunningham and seconded by Jon Arguello to approve the Door
Entry Upgrade Project for Four Corners Charter School, Inc., as presented. Motion was approved
unanimously. (3-0, 2 absent)

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.



Meeting Minutes cont’d
October 4, 2022
Page 3

Board Director Julius Melendez confirmed with Principal Thompson that the security guard at the school
has a check in sheet. Principal Thomson affirmed.

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were none.

VII. ADJOURNMENT

Board Director Julius Melendez adjourned the October 4, 2022, Four Corners Charter School, Inc.
Board Meeting at 2:54 p.m.

Signature

Date:

Four Corners Charter School, Inc.



Jendy
2202 03 foad €202
dduaJaIq

Nl

s|enyy
2ecoe

89

suoj3dafoid
€202

S 19

s|eon
€202

v €9

14 ¥SNSd

v €9

apesn 491391 Sjulod |e30] J0 % 1922y 28D 2jey pedn 19227 SN SaIpn3s |e1nos [UBS §2 Mo7 97 Uein 97 4ien yien SZ2Mo191v13 91v13 Y13

buluiea] pue bujydea] ‘ssaddns Jusapnis

teoz €202 2202 %06 %TOT %66 % H 10b4e] €20e %19 S3UapNIS ALIoUIN %
° uo13INqIIIu0) 994 Jwbpy %08 Suspms al %
%0 vsnsd 1Ind pred e
[») [») [») de) boad % de) Boad
%98  %b6 %26 6 O . N e s
%SE
:ydead 03 sjeas uado, (€202 ‘21 uer yo se) Aleulwi|d4d £202 Ad J311 |edueuly
wee €202 2202 1202
89 89
uo1Ng3uod @
%TE ¥SNSD BAY > m- AO\ONNV J1J3P ‘294 ||ny Bulked JoN 40°31D1Jap 934 ||ny Buihed ‘SAJdINS ‘@34 ||ny buiked JoN @ SN[dINs‘a34 ||ny pled @ m m
(zz/t/0T 40 58) B1BY UOISIDAUOD) H
o %06 vee
- uoijeziwiydQ 934nosay
E €202 2202 %1202
c papung £2/52 /T 40 SY TN d3l dluedsiy 3UYM NN Xdelg ueisy
SeT [=% 01 9bue (s3e%) e — 9 g s K103SIH apeJn [ooyd:
12T o6 b} u o (6€)%t 9 (2T)%T 58 1SIH 9pedn jooyds
oh\\l TE0'T || ET0T g whetd  umepmms 00" ’ (€Ll (ren)onoz e
+ (525)%SS “
324> yoea ul 52/T Jo se 0 TE02/0€/9 Spuz wJs ] Je94ey) IxeN
suoinjed|jddy
=
9 %SL o8y ge f ve 0S SS 4% 8t 5
2 = sJapl|yD ydesor g uosdwoy] asiuaqg
8 0 ry
00T'T
o
; pr— (94 e €S 89 9s €S g
6L .
° T EL O 792 t  dnewesboid £202 2202 1202
alA 8247 |14 N dal dluedsiy 3um 11NN xelg uelsy
AS[e210 lied AS 221330 |14
speay juswijoiug |ed1403sIH 218y uonuRY os=< ] 6c0s [l] se50v | cecoz[ll o>

(€2-22 = €202 AS :x3) Judw||o4u3 pue buiexJen

(122330 1184 ) 92U |92XT |euollesdo sawod3nQ 9jqeyinby

TOOHJS d31dVHI SY43INJ0I dNO4







SA9AING UOI}OR]SIIES JOp[OYaYelS usapnis pue juaied ‘JJeis
€20c-ccoc e VSNSD

T00HDS YALIVHI_ I
= SYANYO0) ¥NOA %




~
VSnsod
-t

uonoejsnes 1o, syussardar soide
JeMOWIOS, pue 9313k ¢ da13e A[SU0I]S, JO UOIJRUIqUIO)) .

ISV [e10], sunaoday

winoads Yoeqpoo) aAe3au 9} U0 ISUIUI }SOW 3}
3UId(q _99.ISeSIP A[SUO0I]S,, }IM JUSUWIIIISRSIP JO S[OAYT &

Esbommm Momm%@& mﬁﬁmoawfcoemcméﬁmoa
9} SUIA( 9313k A[SUO0I]S, YIIM JUOUWIAISE JO S[QAIT &

d[eIS JUI0d 9

SHNSY 9Y ], sunaadiojuy
19 9[edS AdAINS




~
vSnso
-t

©30%-cc0g [[e]

S}NS9Y AdAING <mbmu

TOOHDS d4LIdVHO —
= SYANAOD 4104




Vv

>

N\
n

S

SO

%02 uey3 ssa| :A31|1qe1|ay Mo

%0¥ Pue %0z usamiaq :A31|iqe1|sy 81esspolN
anoge pue %0t :A11j1qeray ybiH

:3uspnis

%S2Z ueyl sse| :A31|1qe1|ay mo1

%S2Z PUB %05 Uaam1aq :A31|1qe1|ay 81et8polN
anoge pue %06 :A11j1qeray ybiH

:juaJled

%05 ueyl ssa| :A31|1qe1|ay Mo

9%0S PUB %G/ usamiaq :A31|1qe1|ay 81et8poN
anoge pue %S/ :A11jiqeray ybiy

Ainqeray ybiH uspnis
Aiiqeray ybiH 1eis
Aiigersy ybiH JusJed

:sey a1eJ4 uoiediniyied Aaaungs |jed
€202-2202 "4ewydusaq paysi|qelss uo paseg

)o0qpaaf 1ay3 apinoid upd jooyas A1pIuawWa|a ay3
wodif syuapnjs fo ajdwips an11pIu3sa1dal b 3iNsUa 01 3poib ;7 aY) Woif SJuapuUodsal AJuo s1uasaidal siy| ,

%6/ %LL %/8
99T T/T T/T
x LET 2etl el
%09 %LV %29
859 999 999
= 91E 1A%
%EE %<Z8 %6
0L 82 82
E£C e 1T
%00T 2%00T %L6
Ev LS LS
ar 09 &5
||1e4 buiids 1CE
"02-220¢ 220e-120ze

21ey uonediniJed
1UNo) |R10|
1UNo) sasuodsay
916y uoneddilied
uno) |10
1UN0) sasuodsay
91ey uonednilied
1UNo) |R10 |
1UNo) sasuodsay
916y uoneddilied
1Uno) |k10 |
1UNO0Y) sasuodsay

}1]1qe1|9y S3|NSaY 8 918y uoijedidijied

Adewwng Asnuns |jeq £202-2202

S1USpPNIS ||V JUSpNIS

sol|lwe

[euolloniAisul-uon

|euolloniisul

juaied

HEe1S



™\
vsSaso "Tooyos
e JO OPISINO SISSB[D WO SLIPI IO Y[B} A[[PBaI J0U Op AdY[[, "S9SRIoAR 93]S PUR YIOMIOU Y} SAOR [[OM [[L3S
sf'siy ysnoyyfe syuapnis §OD o} Suowre £10591e0 Sururiofrad 1s9Mo[ 9 03 SONUNIU0D JudurageSuy :SJuopnils

9INn)nyJ 9} JOJ UOISIA B SUI}BIID 10 S[BOS [RUOIIRZIUBSIO

UM POAJOAUL AISA [99] J0U OP JJels pue swrerdord/sasse[o s p[Iyo 119y} 10 S[e0s3 SUIIes] s pryo J1oy3 yim

POAJOAUL AI9A [99] J0U Op Sjudled "A10331ed SIY} Ul JudtaA0IdWI JUBOYIUSIS SI 91973 YSnoyi[e Jjels pue sjuated
(10( WO.JJ UOLJIRBJSTIBS JO S[9AS] 1SOMO[ 9} SAISIAI 0] SINUNIU0D SUDRIA-UOISIIJ( [BI07] :JJelS X sjudaed .

:JusurdAoIdul] JI0J SedIy

"PUSLIJ € 0} [00Y9S 9} PUSWIWIOIAI P[NOM A3} PUR ‘JUIWUOIIAUD A[PUSLIJ pUR JeS © SI
[00T0S 9Y3} 1B} 92138 SJUSPNIS 1SOUI ‘JJelS pUE SI[IUIe] oY} oI — sdnox poﬂoaoxﬁm ¢ [[e SSOI0® QWY ® SI 19U}
— syuapnis SQD] Y3 WIOIJ UOIIOR]STIES JO [9A9] 31SOYSIY 93 PAAISJAI A}[RAOT] PUR A}9JeS [00YIS :STUIPNIS .

"[00Y9s 9y} Je Sunjiom Addey a1e pue afes [99) A9(} ‘SUIULIBI] J0J SAIONPUOD ST JUSWUOIIAUS S [OOYIS

9] 9AJI[9( A9} ‘SPUNOIZNOR] [BIN][ND SIUSPNIS SAN[BA [00YIS 31} JeY] 9313k AJLIO[eW 9T, "UOIIORISIIES JO S[OAJ]

1S9US3IY 9} YIIm Sulped] A1[eA0] pue A13jes [00YdS ‘ANmbi y1m Uo11oeJSIIes Ul paseaIoul dARY SILI0S91RD [[V
"SI0}RIISIUTWPR 9} pPue [00Yds 9] Jo uondodiad s[qeroAr) A1oA aARY OS[€ JJels SOD 93 ‘SoI[Iwie] 9] oY1 :JJe1S

‘PUSLIJ B 03 J1 PUSUIWIOIAI P[NOM PUE [00DS
a1 Jo pnoid axe A9y} ‘Jooyds s1y} Je Addey pue ajes aqe syuapnis 19y} [99] waEWHWEo\S A9y, ‘soSeIaAR 9]€)S
PpUe YI0M19U 9] Surdedino UsAd UOIORISIIES JO S[9AI] 1SOYSIY 9} SUIAIIDI JUUIdSeSU pue AJeLo] ‘A19yes

[OOYDS IMm ‘Jo0oyds a1} Jo uondadtad a[qeloae] A[[eIoUS3 B dABY 0} 9NUNUOI SAI[IWe} SOD Y} sSjudaed .

:S1INS9Yy Adaang dog,

A103891e)) AQ SINSY [00Y2S




abeuany 90.4by |10 Miomia | ‘@bessny sauby A|Buouis diomia) | ‘@04by |e10] @ ‘@auby A|buoils e
MoUu>| Jou op | | ‘@a4besiq
A|buouis @ ‘@a.1besiq m ‘@a4besiq ieymawios v ‘@a.by Jeymawos m ‘@2.6y @ ‘@3.4by A|buoiis m

lle4 Buuds [e4 lle4 bunds  |edq lle4  bBunds  jed lle4 bunds  je4 lle4 Buuds  je4 lle4 bBunds  |led

lle4 buuds  |e4 lle4 Buuds  qeq lle4 Bunds  jled lle4 bBunds g4 lle4 buuds je4 lle4  Buwds  qed
£2-¢C el s ee-ézé e W Tl ] W 22-1¢e £€e-2¢e Zeé-1e ecde 2212
Aey) SAsud0) ANo4|taey) S4sudo) AnoH | raey) SAsud0) AnoH|raey) sisudo) AnoH|raey) sisudo) Ano4|raey) sisuuo) AnoS

13s A1ales jooyds Ayjeho " UoISID3( |B207 Ayinb3g Juswabebuy
juaJed

Aioba3e) Jad spuad] |BDII0]SIH (Jo0YIS 4934ey) S43Ul0) AN0S




abeuany 9a.by |L10 ]| Miomia | ‘©beusny 2a.by A|Buoals yiomis | ‘@24by |e10] @ ‘@auby A|buoiis e
MouX{ J0u op | | ‘@34besi(

A|buouis @ ‘@a4besiq m ‘@a4besig ieymawos = ‘@a4by 1eymawos m ‘©2.by m ‘@2.4by A|buoiis m

lle4 Buuds e4 lle4 bBunds  |e4q lle4 bBunds je4q lle4 Buuds jed lle4 Buuds jed lle4  Buwds  jleq

lle4 Buuds  e4 lle4 bBunds  |e4q lle4 bBuuds  je4q lle4 bBuuds |ed lle4 Buuds jed lle4  bBuwds  |leq

gc-ac 22-1e geg-ac 2212 geg-é2c 2e-1e ge-ac 22-1e ge-ac 2212 geg-éc 2c-1e
"*Jey?) SI2U40) AN04| "aey) S43Uld0)) N0 | ey SIBU40) ANo4|"iey) S43U40) ANo4|"iey) Siauio) Ano4| "ieyd Siauldo) 4no4

13Ss A13jes |ooyds Ayjehoq ** U0oISID3(Q |B207 A1Inb3 1uswabebuy
Hels

Ai0ba31e) Jad spuaJ| |BDII0]SIH :|ooYdS 4914ey) S43u40) Ano4




abeuany 2a4by 210 iomia | ‘@beusny 2a.4by A|buo.uls yiomis) | ‘@24by 30| @ ‘@34by A|buoiis e
MOU>| 10U Op | | ‘@34besiq

A|buo.is @ ‘@a1besiq m ‘@3.4besiq ieymawog i ‘@a4by 1eymawos m ‘o3.4by m ‘@2.4by A|buo.is m

lle4 bBuwuds  q1eq lle4 bBunds |e4 lle4 bBunds |1ed le4 bBuuds 14 le4 bBuuds qe4 le4 bBuuds |e4

lle4 Buuds  |e4 lle4 buuds e lle4 buuds  |e4 lle4  bBuuds  jleq lle4  Buuds  |le4q lle4  buuds  qle4q

Al A 2e-1¢e €céc Tl K £é-2c 2c21e €e-ac 2e-1e €c-ac 2e-1¢e €c-ac 2e-1¢e
""Jeyd SAsuJdo) ANoH| "aeyd SAsudo) ANo4|Taey) SAsaul0) UNo4 | aeyd Sisudo) Ano4| Taey) Sisudo) Ano4 | riey)d siauio) Ano4

13S Ayales |ooyds A11eho7 * UoISID3( |B20T A3inb3 1uswabebuy
juspnis

Ai0631e) Jad Spuau| |eI1I0]SIH :|ooyds 4814ey) S43u40) Ano4







Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc.

Financial Statements
and
Supporting Schedules

For Month Ended:

September 30, 2022



Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc.

Governmental Balance Sheet
September 30, 2022

Account
Number

OF1

GENERAL DEBT SERVICE CAPITAL PROJECTS [ SPECIAL REVENUE

OF2

Fund Types

OF4

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 5,362,480.58 0.00 326,588.90 0.00 5,689,069.48
Investments 1160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Taxes Receivable 1120 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Receivable 1130 657.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 657.24
Interest Receivable 1170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Reinsurer 1180 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Receivable 1210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Funds 1140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Agencies 1220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Items 1230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Assets 5,363,137.82 0.00 326,588.90 0.00 5,689,726.72
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Salaries, Benefits and Payroll Taxes Payable 2110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Payable 2120 398,905.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 398,905.20
Judgments Payable 2130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable-Retained 2150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Matured Interest Payable 2190 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sales Tax Payable 2260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Estimated Liability Self Insurance 2270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accrued Interest Payable 2210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Payable 2220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Agencies 2230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Funds 2160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Revenue 2410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Liabilities 398,905.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 398,905.20
FUND BALANCES

Total Fund Balances 2700 4,964,232.62 0.00 326,588.90 0.00 5,290,821.52

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5,363,137.82 0.00 326,588.90 0.00 5,689,726.72




GENERAL FUND

Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc. OF1 Budget Amounts Percentage
Revenue & Expenditures - Budget And Actual Account Original Current Actual of Current
September 30, 2022 Number Budget
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Federal Through State 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
State Sources 3300 7,798,777.00 7,798,777.00 1,903,502.06 24.41%
Local Sources 3400 6,000.00 6,000.00 4,017.87 66.96%
Total Revenues 7,804,777.00 7,804,777.00 1,907,519.93 24.44%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 6,020,668.45 6,020,668.45 1,553,048.88 25.80%
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Board 7100 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00%
General Administration 7200 1,262,354.55 1,262,354.55 290,988.52 23.05%
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1,058,934.00 1,058,934.00 262,260.71 24.77%
Fiscal Services 7500 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Maintenance of Plant 8100 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Tech Services 8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service 9200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Expenditures 8,518,957.00 8,518,957.00 2,106,298.11 24.72%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (714,180.00) (714,180.00) (198,778.18) 27.83%
Long-term Debt Proceeds & Sales of Capital Assets 3700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers In 3600 693,180.00 693,180.00 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 693,180.00 693,180.00 0.00
[SPECTAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
FUND BALANCE
Net Change in Fund Balance (21,000.00) (21,000.00) (198,778.18)
Fund Balance, July 01, 2022 2800 5,163,010.80 5,163,010.80 5,163,010.80
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 2700 5,142,010.80 5,142,010.80 4,964,232.62




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc. OF3 Budget Amounts Percentage
Revenue & Expenditures - Budget And Actual Account Original Current Actual of Current
September 30, 2022 Number Budget
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Federal Through State 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
State Sources 3300 693,180.00 693,180.00 121,718.00 17.56%
Local Sources 3400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Revenues 693,180.00 693,180.00 121,718.00 17.56%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Board 7100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
General Administration 7200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Tech Services 8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service 9200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 693,180.00 693,180.00 121,718.00 17.56%
Long-term Debt Proceeds & Sales of Capital Assets 3700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers In 3600 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 (693,180.00) (693,180.00) 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (693,180.00) (693,180.00) 0.00
FUND BALANCE
Net Change in Fund Balance 0.00 0.00 121,718.00
Fund Balance, July 01, 2022 2800 204,870.90 204,870.90 204,870.90
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 2700 204,870.90 204,870.90 326,588.90




Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc.

Financial Statements
and
Supporting Schedules

For Month Ended:

December 31, 2022



Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc.

Governmental Balance Sheet
December 31, 2022

Account
Number

OF1

GENERAL DEBT SERVICE CAPITAL PROJECTS [ SPECIAL REVENUE

OF2

Fund Types

OF4

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1110 5,481,305.54 0.00 510,505.90 0.00 5,991,811.44
Investments 1160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Taxes Receivable 1120 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Receivable 1130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest Receivable 1170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Reinsurer 1180 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Receivable 1210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Funds 1140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due from Other Agencies 1220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Inventory 1150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Items 1230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Assets 5,481,305.54 0.00 510,505.90 0.00 5,991,811.44
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Salaries, Benefits and Payroll Taxes Payable 2110 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 2170 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accounts Payable 2120 803,061.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 803,061.65
Judgments Payable 2130 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable 2140 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Construction Contracts Payable-Retained 2150 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Matured Interest Payable 2190 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Fiscal Agent 2240 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sales Tax Payable 2260 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Estimated Liability Self Insurance 2270 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Accrued Interest Payable 2210 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deposits Payable 2220 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Agencies 2230 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Due to Other Funds 2160 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deferred Revenue 2410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Liabilities 803,061.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 803,061.65
FUND BALANCES

Total Fund Balances 2700 4,678,243.89 0.00 510,505.90 0.00 5,188,749.79

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5,481,305.54 0.00 510,505.90 0.00 5,991,811.44




GENERAL FUND

Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc. OF1 Budget Amounts Percentage
Revenue & Expenditures - Budget And Actual Account Original Current Actual of Current
December 31, 2022 Number Budget
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Federal Through State 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
State Sources 3300 7,798,777.00 7,798,777.00 3,727,196.35 47.79%
Local Sources 3400 6,000.00 6,000.00 10,733.82 178.90%
Total Revenues 7,804,777.00 7,804,777.00 3,737,930.17 47.89%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 6,020,668.45 6,020,668.45 3,103,947.40 51.55%
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Board 7100 7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 100.00%
General Administration 7200 1,262,354.55 1,262,354.55 583,931.21 46.26%
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1,058,934.00 1,058,934.00 527,818.47 49.84%
Fiscal Services 7500 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Maintenance of Plant 8100 150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Tech Services 8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service 9200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Expenditures 8,518,957.00 8,518,957.00 4,222,697.08 49.57%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (714,180.00) (714,180.00) (484,766.91) 67.88%
Long-term Debt Proceeds & Sales of Capital Assets 3700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers In 3600 693,180.00 693,180.00 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 693,180.00 693,180.00 0.00
[SPECTAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
FUND BALANCE
Net Change in Fund Balance (21,000.00) (21,000.00) (484,766.91)
Fund Balance, July 01, 2022 2800 5,163,010.80 5,163,010.80 5,163,010.80
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 2700 5,142,010.80 5,142,010.80 4,678,243.89




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Four Corners Charter Schools, Inc. OF3 Budget Amounts Percentage
Revenue & Expenditures - Budget And Actual Account Original Current Actual of Current
December 31, 2022 Number Budget
REVENUES
Federal Direct 3100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Federal Through State 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
State Sources 3300 693,180.00 693,180.00 305,635.00 44.09%
Local Sources 3400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Revenues 693,180.00 693,180.00 305,635.00 44.09%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Personnel Services 6100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Media Services 6200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instruction and Curriculum Development Services 6300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Staff Training Services 6400 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Instructional Related Technology 6500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Board 7100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
General Administration 7200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
School Administration 7300 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7410 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Central Services 7700 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Administrative Tech Services 8200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Community Services 9100 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Debt Service 9200 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Total Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 693,180.00 693,180.00 305,635.00 44.09%
Long-term Debt Proceeds & Sales of Capital Assets 3700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers In 3600 0.00 0.00 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 (693,180.00) (693,180.00) 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (693,180.00) (693,180.00) 0.00
FUND BALANCE
Net Change in Fund Balance 0.00 0.00 305,635.00
Fund Balance, July 01, 2022 2800 204,870.90 204,870.90 204,870.90
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fund Balance, June 30, 2023 2700 204,870.90 204,870.90 510,505.90




OSCEOLA COUNTY COMPONENT UNIT

General Fund

Four Corners Charter School, Inc. OF1 Budget Amounts
. . 2022-23 2022-23
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget Amendment #01 Function Final Amendment #1 Difference
UFTE 1053.46 947.23 -106.23 %
Federal Direct 3100 0.00
Federal Through State & Local 3200 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Sources 3300 7,798,777.00 7,420,095.82 (378,681.18) -4.86%
Local Sources 3400 6,000.00 15,000.00 9,000.00 150.00%
Total Revenues 7,804,777.00 7,435,095.82 (369,681.18) -4.74%
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction 5000 6,020,668.45 5,720,673.75 (299,994.70) -4.98%
Student & Instructional Support Services 6000 0.00 0.00 0.00
Board 7100 7,000.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Administration Fees:
District Holdback Fee 7201 92,538.00 97,918.00 5,380.00 5.81%
Charter Holder 7202 0.00
Management Company 7203 1,169,816.55 1,111,274.25 (58,542.30) -5.00%
Other 7204 0.00
School Administration 7300 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 1,058,934.00 1,058,934.00 0.00 0.00%
Fiscal Services 7500 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00%
Food Services 7600 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 150,000.00 344,200.00 194,200.00 129.47%
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00
Total Expenditures 8,518,957.00 8,360,000.00 (158,957.00)| 125.29%
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (714,180.00) (924,904.18) (210,724.18)]  120.56%
Loans Incurred 3720 0.00
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770 0.00
Transfers In 3600 693,180.00 935,175.90 241,995.90 34.91%
Transfers Out 9700 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 693,180.00 935,175.90 241,995.90 34.91%
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances (21,000.00) 10,271.72 31,271.72 | -148.91%
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2800 5,163,010.80 5,163,010.80 0.00 0.00%
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891 0.00
Fund Balance - End of Year 2700 5,142,010.80 5,173,282.52 31,271.72 0.61%
Fund Balance:
Debt Service 1,041,463.50
Maintenance Reserve 600,000.00
Unassigned 3,531,819.02
Total Fund Balance 5,173,282.52

Notes:
Unassigned fund balance as a percentage of revenues:

42.19%



OSCEOLR COUNTY COMPONENT UNIT

Capital Projects

Four Corners Charter School, Inc. OF3 Budget Amounts
. . 2022-23 2022-23
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget Amendment #01 Function Final Amendment #1 Difference
UFTE 1053.46 947.23 -106.23
Federal Direct 3100 0.00
Federal Through State & Local 3200 0.00
State Sources 3300 693,180.00 730,305.00 37,125.00 5.36%
Local Sources 3400 0.00
Total Revenues 693,180.00 730,305.00 37,125.00 5.36%

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Instruction 5000 0.00
Student & Instructional Support Services 6000 0.00
Board 7100 0.00
Administration Fees:
District Holdback Fee 7201 0.00
Charter Holder 7202 0.00
Management Company 7203 0.00
Other 7204 0.00
School Administration 7300 0.00
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7400 0.00
Fiscal Services 7500 0.00
Food Services 7600 0.00
Central Services 7700 0.00
Pupil Transportation Services 7800 0.00
Operation of Plant 7900 0.00
Maintenance of Plant 8100 0.00
Administrative Technology Services 8200 0.00
Community Services 9100 0.00
Debt Service: (Function 9200)
Retirement of Principal 710 0.00
Interest 720 0.00
Dues, Fees and Issuance Costs 730 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenditures 790 0.00
Capital Outlay:
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 7420 0.00
Other Capital Outlay 9300 0.00
Total Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 693,180.00 730,305.00 37,125.00 5.36%
Loans Incurred 3720 0.00
Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets 3730 0.00
Loss Recoveries 3740 0.00
Proceeds of Forward Supply Contract 3760 0.00
Special Facilities Construction Advances 3770 0.00
Transfers In 3600 0.00
Transfers Out 9700 (693,180.00) (935,175.90) 241,995.90 -34.91%
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (693,180.00) (935,175.90) 241,995.90 -34.91%
SPECIAL ITEMS
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS
Net Change in Fund Balances 0.00 (204,870.90) 204,870.90
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 2800 204,870.90 204,870.90 0.00 0.00%
Adjustment to Fund Balance 2891
Fund Balance - End of Year 2700 204,870.90 0.00 (204,870.90)( -100.00%




juspn}g Jad ajey
juawijjoiugy

aouejeg pung ui abuey) jaN

%€ ¥61
%8~ (¥8)
(zes'vy)
%00L-  (2£S‘vy)
%8- (sv6'608)
%002~ (z82'691)
%28~ (626°L¥€)
%P+ (ges'8s)
%02 1189
%= (gez'9)
= (1zv)
%6 GL6'YS
%1~ (¥52)
%1 180 v
%0 =
%9~ (g6%'0¢€)
%8~ (8eL'eve)
%8 viv'G9L
%8/ 106678
%9125 910y
%8LL 089°2L€
%S T4
%9~ (SLe'ery)
abuey? 9, abuey) ¢

jobpng O} 9oUBHEA

$ e€es‘L $ 8LLL $ %S 86¢ $ e€es‘L $ 226'L
GS0°L 126 %01~ (601) GS0°L 96
ZES v y6'28.L $ (69.°66Y) G11°€82
28S‘vy = = vr6°28. (692°66%) G/L°€82
$ 1221586 $ 91€199°0L $ %6 G8€‘L9Y $ L8V'GZ6'V $ LOL'8SY'v
GZ8'v8 10152 %e- (rLi‘oL) 180‘LY G6L°LS
862921 122'vLL %9- (g00°z1) GL6'Tle 816'vZe
10%'990°C Tv6'vrLT %t (6LLvP) 78€°/£0°L 10G‘180°L
glLeg'eye 111'€1T %8Z LE€' LY 60L°LLL LLL'ETL
192'599 20G°129 %€ G09'6 9£9°'zee L£0'cze
= 1zy S (1zv) = 1Zv
890°€29 £51°895 %66 ¥08°80€ LEG°LLE €€.°T
09€'8S Y1165 %S9 126'92 089'Ly €571
00.'8%9 619'709 %EL 6207t 88z'cee 092682
0oz'el 0o0z'el %82- (918°1) 009'9 9l¥'8
¥82°12S 61.°1GS % 8ze'L1 YSY'v9Z 9Z1'€52Z
Sy.'1L0V'Y z8V'SYL'y %P 8z8'/8 G08'991°C 116'8/0°C
$ €06°'G68°6 $ 91E199°0L $ %L 8GG6°GLE $ sLlL'ser'y $ 9.ZW\WW.ilY
1v0°280°L ¥56'9€6°1 %2951 zlG'eee 06212 298'vSE
1L €607 %8125 600'C 6¢ 10T
GLY'8LL GSL 961 %G1~ (290°c)) 8£7'68 04192
- - = Z9r'v9l - Z9r'v9l
08169 G0E‘0EL %9 L1202 06S‘9vE 108'99¢
¥Z1'286°L $ 608'c6Y'L $ | %S (v€9°161) 295°896'¢C $ 826'9/L°€
19bpng 19bpng abuey9 % abueyo ¢ j9b6png |euibo s|enjoy
euibu apuaw
leutbuQ pap A/ —_— alaA alaA

2202/1€/Z) PapU3 pouad 8y} Jod
[ooyos Jayeys siaulo) Ino4-§9904
pajepijosuo) - Joday sisAjeuy asueliep

dx3 19A0 A3Y JO (M2142Q)/SS9IXT

sasuadx3 |ejo|

99|AI8S AjUnwwo)
Jue|d JO 9ouBUS)UIB
jueld jo uonesadQ
$991AI9S uonenodsuel] (1ldnd
S92INIBS [Bljus)
S92IAI8S POO
S92IAIBS |B0S]H
uopisinboe pue sapioey
uohessiulupy |00ydos
pieog
S$92IA18S Hoddng uoionusu|
uolonusu|

sasuadxy

senuaAay |e}o]

BNUBASY Ssjuels) [eiapa
S924N0S 9NUBAJY |e1dads
BWIodU| }salaju|
sanuanay weiboid Jayio
suonnquUIuoY / sjuels) ajeAlld
$921N0G 9NUBAY 13Y}0
Aepno [ended
d434
$824N0g 9djels
SONUAADY

vsn)

*STTOOHDS YHALAVHD

-t

i




%8- (8cL'cpe)
%0 =

= (560)
%G202- (222'%€9)
%001 8v8'c

= (ov2)

= (9s0°¢)
%0 =

%8¢ 9/6'61
%€8¢- (1v0'0LL)
= 6bl
%LE2C- (oos'zt)
%2Til- (212'62)
%S+ (916°22)
%001 ¥20'C
%0 =

%2l 6989
%08 00091
%EE- (6ev'6L)
%09.- (0£8'292)
%91 qel'le
%81 (085°29)
%GGS- (580°'881)
= (20%'S9Y)
%Le- (eeL'st)
%EP 299°662'1
%8 viIv's9l
%8L 106'678
%9125 910t
%G1 (902°92)
= 982

= 001 ‘v¥e
%S GzZL'LE
%29 6LL'SY
%9~ (760°'68%)
abuey) 9, abueys ¢

jobpng 0} odUELEp

$

SYL'LOv'Y
000°0}
00%°92
8v8‘c

69679
G0.2S
GZ6'8€
042'G
G¢S
0€°19
¥20°C
990'8}
02185
000°Z€
005°8S
6.5°7E
Tl8LLL
90v‘LEL
6.8°€E
066°GS
969°'210°€

€06°'G68°6
190°280')

L
Glv'8LL

081 ‘€69
0LLvL

¥56'298°2

1abpng
leutbuo

Z8P'SyL'y
0000}
G60'Y
121195
0

ove
950°c
69679
62.'C¢
996'8YL
(6¥71)
0221
Zve'9L
982'68
990°8l
LLO'ELS
0009}
6€6°LL
607262
LSLvpl
986°'c61
¥96°12¢2
L0¥'S9Y
€ZLLL
vE0'8LL L

9LE‘L99°01L
v56'9€6'L

€60’y
041G
98¢
00L'v¥e

G0E‘0EL
6v6°61

098°'€L€L

1obpng
pepusawy

%V 828'L8
%001 00001

> (560)
%¥L8L-  (002'€€2)
s (ov2)

s (9s0°¢)
%L LLb'y
%001 G0.°2S
%2e- (zvv')

> 6bl
%001 042'S
%¥.6e-  (€92'81)
%001 0/£°19
%001 ¥20'C
%62- (9€9°2)
%0 (0£2)
%58 00L'6%
%629- (¢18'801)
%0€- (ogz'se)
%G6- (085°29)
%\l (229°¢)

s (¢v2'1¥2)
%EL 8€2'c
%EY 651219
%L 8GS'SLE

%1951 zLS'eee

%8125 600°C

%G1~ (ese'el)

> 982

> 29%' 9l

%9 YR A

%29 06822

%G~ (ezs'v12)
abueyy 9, abueys ¢

jobpng 0} aouUBLEA

2202/1E/C) papul poliad ayj} Jo4

|[ooydg Jayeyd sisauio) 1no4-S9904

$

608991
000°0}
088zl

0

y8v'ze
G0.2S
GZ6'8€
042'G
G¢S
0€°19
¥20°c
€€0'6
Zly'v9e
005°8S
062°L}
v..28
€0.°G9
0691
0S¥'Ge
LZs'oLy'L

gLl'sey'y
062'12

6€
8€Z'68

065°9v€
G80°LE

LLY'LEB'E

3abpng |euibuo

aia

pajepijosuo) — Juoday sisAjeuy asueliep

L16°8L0°C
660y
08S‘9vZ
0
(144
950°c
€10'82
19€'LY
(6¥71)
88261

69911
€89'792
008‘8
€0L'9z)
¥00°801
€82'8C)
99502
TvLive
zie'ee
99€°'86.

9.Z°LL'Y
298'vse

1¥0'C
688G/
98¢

297 v9l

£08°99¢
G/6'6S

¥G6'9LL°E

sjenjoy
aia

uononJsuj [ejo

ainoniiselu) 1|

81eM}JOS - Jaindwo)

aiempleH - siendwo)

(deguonN) bp|g ueuyy Jayjo Aoidw
(deguoN) atemyog Jaindwo)
(deguonN) asempieH Jayndwod
uoponuIsu| - 3dS pejoenuod

sjeuaje|y bunse

$9SU8DIT [euononI)su|
syoog aousiajey B Aleigr
S1ayoea | a|qewnsuo)
SjUapNIS Bjgewnsu0)

S)00qIXa ]

wswdojana Yels apIsinQ
S99 [BUOISS8J0ld Jayl0

sjiyouag %@ sexe]
Buuoyny

snuog

puadis

soply/poddng Jayi0
sJayoea ] ansgns Ajleq
|euorjonJsu| - sapiy

sgng jusuewiad

uopeonp3 |eloads/3S3

sJayoea |
uolonisu|
sasuadx3g

SONUDAY [e)0 ]

anusAsy sjuels) |eispa
S92IN0G aNUBAdY [e19adg

QWIodUu| }salau|

aNUBASY aIedIBYY pue aiojeg
aNuUaAaY 9IIAIDS P00
senuanay weiboid J8yi0
sSuonNQUIUOY / SIUBIS) B)eAld

S$924N0S INUBAIY 13Y}0

anuanay AejinQ |eyded
uopepodsuel] Juspnig

juspn}s / uoljeyde sjels

vsn

s92In0g 3je)s
SONUBAIY

> 4

4

*STOOHDS YHLAVHD



%l
%0
%0

%L

%56~
%0
%0
%58~
%0
%€C
%6Y
%lcl-
%1€
%
4

%0
%0
%0

%9~
%001
%0
%0
%06
%001
%0
%S~
%SC-
%0
%€
%9
%L9
%68~
%ot~
%08€¢-

%EC

abuey) 9,

(¥52)

(¥52)

180
(696)
(z26)

(80g's)
ove'6e
66E VL

(zzz'6)
LIE LY
£60‘G

(26¢'62)

(s6¥'0¢)
29.°L€
(evg'6)

950y
868'%
(cz6'L)
(¥20'2)
LTy
69.L°L
golL‘e
(016'9)
(6€0°L)
(s¥z'19)
(811'6)
Zvl'se

abueys ¢

jobpng 0} odUELEp

09€°8S
09¢‘ee
000'GZ

00.°879
820°L
GGY'S
60€‘9
2sv'9
8l¢
62S°,L2)
891'6¢C
1592
9es‘LEl
v.IEVT)
189802

00zl
000'G
002Z‘8

v8z‘les
29.°Le
9/l
000‘L
z8v'y
868'Y
€18
g9zey
G60'8
808
Sy9'ovl
Lo'ozt
0SL'Yy
0LL'L
0S¥'Se
Yov'e

gge'eLl

1abpng
leutbuo

vLL6S
09¢‘ee
000°SC
27

619709
696
000
GGY'S
60€°9
096°L
%4
881°86
690Gl
€891
61206
z82'6LL
8.0°8€C

00z‘cl
000°G
00z‘8

61L°18S
£YS'6
91
000°}
T4
€18

88l vy
6LL0L
808
8zv'eyl
Lve'sLlL
G8s‘l
6.9'71
681°9¢
259°e8
8Lv'6
¥19°/8

1obpng
pepusawy

%S9
%91
%001

%EL

%8¢¢-
%9¢€-
%E€L-
%l e
%98
%61
%61
%lve-
%09
%61
%01~

%8¢
%68
%08~

V14
%001
%001
%91~
%16
%001
%001
%y
%L
%001
%EL
%01~
%19
%8LL-
%01~
%19ce-

%6Y

abueyy 9,

jobpng 0} adueLEA

12692

189°C

000°G2
(52)

620'vv

GZO'LL
66E V1L
(zzz'6)

0€5'6€
YEO'LL
(s€01)

(918°1)
¥8¥'L
(o0g‘e)

8zZe'L1
188'GL
(evg'6)
9/l
(82)
669
868'%
£el
6.6'8
(oot‘1)
Y0p
818'6
(e50°9)
golL‘e
(016'9)
(¥92°1)
(z22'v¢)

€999z

abueys ¢

2202/1E/C) papul poliad ayj} Jo4

|[ooydg Jayeyd sisauio) 1no4-S9904

089°L¥
089°9L
000'GZ

88z‘cee
1451
lzl'e
gsL'e
6.V
8l¢
£09°8S
891'6¢C
Gzg'e
89.°G9
18129
LyEY0L

0099
005
(00] %7

ySv'v9e
188'SL
9/l
00S
19/
868'Y
€el
geLie
G60'8
14017
€ze'el
€1929
0SL'Yy
G8g'e
STANAL
0S0‘L

LeL'vs

3abpng |euibuo
ala

pajepijosuo) — jJuoday sisAjeuy asueliep

€SLv1L
666°CL

17

092°682
696
G89°L
80L°€
09%'S
glzoL
L€

28S Ly
690Gl
8v0'ElL
8€2'92
€G50S
00LpLL

9lv's
9l0°}
00'L

T4 N 3+T4

£YS'6
8.5
89

€5zl
G6v'6

v.Ly'€9
999°89
G8s‘L

¥6.°0L
686°ClL
zee'se

8Sv'/2

sjenjoy
aia

uonisinboe pue sapijioe |ejo |

asuadx3 asean

uonisinbo

9 Juay uswdinbg

3944
(deguoN) 3944
e pue saljljioe

uojjesisiuiwpy |ooyds |ejoL
asuadx3 198Q peg

pleog |ejoL

Buikdo) % Bunuud

suonduosgng ® sang

se||ddng 800
lonel ]

soa Bunsa] Bnig
sjyjouag g sexe]
snuog

pusdng

ANOH - 8AlEASIUIWPY
paueles - aAlenSIuIWPY

diysispea] |0ooyog

uoljessiuiwipy |ooyos

|asuno) juspuadapu| - sea4 [eba]
HpNY - S82IA8G BuuN0ooY

pieog

seoIAI8g Joddng uoonsul [e3o |

AlNOH - 8@sinN
palueles - asinN

asuadx3 wioyun uspnig

S0IAISS Y)eoH

sal|ddng |eoipay
|Jonel ]

asuadx3 juein
s994 Bunynsuon
|elUS|\ pajoesuU0)

juawdojarsq Yels apisinQ
so94 Aouaby Alelodwa |

sea4

99|AIBS Joyndwo)
sjyjouag g sexe]
snuog

puadng

poddng 1|
yoddng Jayj0

SI8yoea| 82In0say

aouepIng

S3921A13S Joddng uononasuj

vsn

*STOOHDS YHLAVHD

> 4

4



%
%cc-
%29~
%0
%0
%lc-
%0
%0
%91~
%0
%0
%0
%0
%0
%01~
%001}

%81~

%02
%02

% -
Y%L~
%0
%0
%0

%6
%0

%0
%0
%0
%0
%0

abuey) 9,

(ge5°82)
(evLol)
(182'92)

(v2L'vL)

(2002
000}

(00g°2)

(zo6'01)

Lvv‘89
Lvv'89

(gez'9)
(gez'9)

(1z¥)
(1zv)

abueys ¢

jobpng 0} odUELEp

20v°990°C
000°G.L
ozs'ey
¢lS

€90°€
€660
vi6'le
G8L'ELL
08L°LY
¥€6'850°}
0S8°€
12z'98e
€65'8Y
042°251
86661
000°L

76665

slzzre
glzzve

192°599
GEZ'06
189
zSLL
€61°€LS

890°€29
269'G
985°502
Y9E‘LY
68791
LiLee
Gly'eT)

1abpng
leutbuo

TY6vrLT
EVLL6
L0€°0L
¢lS

€90°€
1/9'G8
y16°lC
G8L'ELL
€92'8Y
¥€6'850°L
058°c
lzz'age
€65'8Y
0Z°.G1
000°ZZ
00S°C
96802

LLL€Le
LLL€lT

205°129
0.t'96
189
zsL'L
€61°€LS

Ley
ley

€51°896
269°S

(516'%S)

985'602
¥9€'LY
6891
Lii'zs
Glv'eCt

1abpng

papuawy

%V
%
%01}~
%00}
%S~
%lc-
%l 1
%¥-
%EC-
%
%E6
%0
%19
%61~
%S0}~
%00}

%91~

%8¢
%8¢

%<
%9~
%95
%00}
%V

%66
%V

%0
%0
%0
%0
%0

abueyy 9,

jobpng 0} adueLEA

(6LLvY)
198
(1¥g0¢€)
00
(008)
(225°2)
9zZ'L
(¥¥'e)
(LrLy)
G62'8
04S¢
(621)
608Vl
(659'v1)
(¥ez's)
000}
(00g°2)
(559'7)

LE€'LY
LEE LY

6096
(8152
761
9.5
€5e'LL

((¥47)]
(1zv)

¥08°80¢
Sl
889'80€

abueys ¢

2202/1E/C) papul poliad ayj} Jo4

|[ooydg Jayeyd sisauio) 1no4-S9904

28€°L€0°L
00S°2€
09Z°lz
00¥
zeS'L
LLY'GE
15601
£6898
068°02
€LL'9es
0S8°€
oLLerl
1/2'vT
GE9'8L
266
000°L

16662

60L°LLL
60L°LLL

9€9°2€e€
ozl'sy
142>

9/G
965982

LES°LLE
9¥8'c
€6.°20)
£89°0¢C
zey'es
GGO'LY
8€.°19

3abpng |euibuo
ala

pajepijosuo) — jJuoday sisAjeuy asueliep

10S°180°L
6€9'9¢€
L0€°2S
Leez
€50
LEL'6
LEE'06
Le9‘se
818225
08¢
ove'evl
19v'6
€626
12201
00S°C
zS9've

LLL€CL
LLL'€TL

Leo‘eze
8€9'LY
0S1

€Y2'GLT

144
X474

€€LT
LEL'T
(889°80¢)
£6.°201
£89'02
22y'e8
Y50 LY
8¢/'19

sjenjoy
aia

$

jue|d jo uonesadQ [ejol

Anoas pajoesuo)
saliddng Bujues|) x aoueusjule|

se9) [elnjeN
|osuo0) }s8d
|esodsiq a1sep
19MaS § IS\
Ayouos|g

Jouia)u| % auoydaje

S}
S90IMIBS [elp

asuadx3 juay
w9 %@ S8sual
0)SND PajoeuU0D

Buisipenpy 3 Bunexepn
aouelnsu| Ayjiger g Auadolyg

AlnoH -

sjijouag R sexe|
snuog

puadng
suopesadQ jueld

jueld jo uonesado

S991A19G uoneyodsuel] |idnd [ejol

uonenodsuel | [idnd pajoenuo)

S921AI9G UOjEeL

S92IAIaG [eNUI) [eJO |

odsueus] jidng

s994 1011810

buiddiys pue abejsod

JUBWNIOSY Jers

Japjoyiapey) o} 994

S9!

S992IAI9G pOO4 [ejo |

JJAISS |ESJURD

sjjouag % saxe|

S921AI9G POO

S991AI9G [eodsid [ejo]

$99 UeoT 3 sabiey) yueg

d

0S diysiosuodg

peaylanQ |elauas) Jsjua) poddng
juswabeue)) JOPUBA/AUSWSINI0IH

Auadoid |enjos|jaiu| jeuoneonpg

49 Bununoooy pue soueul

wawabeuepy [puuosiad
S92IAIBS |B2SI4

vsn

> 4

4

*STOOHDS YHLAVHD



%€
%8-

V6l $

(¥8)

juapn}s Jad ajey
juswijosug

aouejeg pund ui abuey? jaN

%001~

%8~

%00¢-
%0
%168~
%Ll
%SE
%9

%2C8"

%1 8-

abuey) 9,

(2eS vh)

(z2es‘vy)

(5¥6°608) $

(z8z‘691)

(1e6'GL1)
¥82'L
9/8
0677

(626°L¥€)
(ovL'e)
(881 'v¥€)

abuey) ¢

jobpng 0} odUELEp

€25, $ 8LLL $ %S 86¢ $ €z5'L $ 2z6'L
GS0°L 1.6 %01~ (601) GS0°L 96
28S'vy ¥16'28. $ (69.°66%) GL1L'€82
288y = = Pp6°28. (692°66%) G/L'€82
121586 $ 91£°199'01 $ %6 G8e‘L9¥ $ /8V'GZ6'V $ LoL'8sy'y
GZ8'v8 10152 %12 (FLioL) 180°LY G61°LS
000°€ 000‘¢ %20l Gzs'L 005} (g2)
0002 LE6'2L1 %e6rL-  (1€6'7L) 000'} 1€6°'GL
0SY'L 991°9 %EL 91§ 196'S LGh'e
0052 ¥29'l %SE 9/8 0052 ¥29'l
9/8'69 98¢'G9 %S 006'} v11'8e ¥12'9¢
862°'92¥ 122VLL %9~ (co0°zL) S16°2Le 816722

= ovL'e = (ovL'e) = ovL'e
862'92 18%'0.L %t~ (£92'9) GlL6'2Lg 8/1°122

19bpng }9bpng abuey v abueyo ¢ j39bpng jeuiblQ s|enjoy

¢20Z/1L€/ZL papu3 poliad 3y} 104
Jooyos Jdjey) siauliod Jno4-S904
pajepijosuo) — jioday sisAjeuy asueLiep

(sasn) sa2unog Buidoueul 19yYyj0

dx3g 49A0 A3Y JO (}191J9Q)/SS9IXT

sasuadx3 |ejo|
#91AI8S 192@

89IA188 AJUNWwo) ejo|
92IAI8S P00 8SNOY-U|
SjuaAg AJIAIOY JeinoLIND-BIXT
821188 AJlUNWWOY - S}yeuag g sexe |
snuog
aledla)y - 90IAI8S AJUnwiwo)
921M188 fjlunwwon

jue|d jJo @duRUBUIE [B}O L
sosuadx3 snosue||aosi|\|

Buipiing N9y
jue|d jJo adueuajulep

vsn

*STOOHDS YHLAVHD

> 4

’




[ 210j9q s3] Jezejes ‘sIN “Aepy/judy “Aepn/judy|  “esep juspnis uodn| 00°98€°SS 3 00°98€'SS 3
siuonuanIAu| ul'se ||aMm se uef /3| Ul se ||aMm se uer /23Q| paseq spaau Juapnis
pey aney ap\ ul yamous Jojluow ul yimous Jojiuow 3199w 03 sdnoid
pue 3snSny ul ejep pue isnSny ul ejep pa3asie; ‘|jews |nd
auljaseq 19903 [|IM|  3uI|aseq 393[|03 [|IM|  [|IM SISIUORUBAIRIU]
M "Yamoig Juapnis|  am "yimous Juapnis ‘591025 2IUBIS|
928nes 03 yaMN se 28nes 03 yaMN se pue yjew anoadwj
yans ejep yiewy yans ejep yiewy - € pue z # Auaiy
asn M ap asn M ap 997 - 1SIUOHUAAIAY]
juapyold Suiwodaq
sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IIM Y21ym yiew
pue Suipeaa ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ
13]31L| 2i0joq s,eied| Jezees I “Ae/judy “Re/|udy "e3ep| 00°000°Z€ $ 00°000°2€ S
pey aney am ul'se ||am se uer /53| ulse ||am se uer /23@| 3uapnis uodn paseq
u1 yamous Jo3uow U1 yamosg Jojuow| spaau Juapnis 1a5iel
pue 3snSny ul ejep pue isnSny ul ejep| 03 sdnois |jews yum
auljaseq 199102 [IM|  Buljaseq 399]|03 [IM|  Jaydea ay3 Joddns!
M "yimoug Juapnis|  am "yimous Juapnis 03 9|qe aJe s,esed
28nes 03 yaMN se 928nes 03 yaMN se RAauapiyoud yrew
yans ejep I yans ejep I pue Suipea. anosdw
asn M ap asn M 3 - Zpue T # Ajandy| Awwe] - |euoissajoidereqd
-juapyold Suiwodaq
sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IIM YdIym yiew
pue Suipeas ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ
1311L| di043q seied| Jezejes ‘SIN “Ae/judy “Ae/judy ‘e3ep| 000002 $ 00°000°2€ $
pey aney am ul'se ||am se uef /53| ulse ||am se uer /23@| 3uapnis uodn paseq
u1 yamous Jojuow U1 yamosg Jojuow| spaau Juapnis 1a5iel
pue 3snSny ul ejep pue isnSny ui ejep| 03 sdnois |jews yum
auljaseq 199]|03 [|IM|  duljaseq 399|03 [IM|  Jaydea) ay3 Joddns!
M "Yimois Juapnis|  am "yimous Juapnis 03 9|qe aJe s,esed
28nes 03 yaMN se 28nes 03 yaMN se *Aauapiyoud yrew
yans ejep I yans ejep ) pue Suipeal anosdw
asn M apm asn M 3 - Zpue T # Auandy| ysiey - [euoissajoidesed
-juapyold Suiwodaq
sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IM Y2Iym yiew
pue Suipeas ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ
YE'ELE LY $ VE'ELE VS |2uuosiad 31
0v'sL2'88T$ |3 $43U40) Ino4
& Janod éa1039q SBuuoyuon painseaw *3|qeJnseaw (¢Aessadau 150) |e10) Anuenp 150) ad |eauawsajddng asuadn Aiejes (uondudsap/aweu sainosal|  uonedo|y |ooyds Janey)
03 paz||ian sem | 32an0sau siy} 103 aq Anande ays jo aq 1snwi sjeod Aunioe siya st Aym) -uoddng 21eMYyoS ‘awep a1emyos ‘uoryisod Areununjaig
32nos Suipuny | pajuawajdwi | ajqisuodsay | sS32INs ay3 |IM MOH 3yl -|eoo 1HVIAIS JUBWISSASSY SpaaN woousse) apnpui Asejes j1) Auandy |eloL
YaIym ‘sap 4| pue uosiad  [-PoylaAl JuBWINSEIIA anisuayaidwo) -sndog
paseyaund jo eaiy ‘g Aunnoy
|ooyds apinoad wawusiy dis

ays seq




133 soA| tezejes ‘sIN ‘Repn/jdy ‘Repn/judy *spaau| 00°0SL‘E $ 0SLE
Ul se ||aMm se uer /53| Ulse ||aM se uer /23a|  |enplApul sjuapnis
u1 yamous Jojuow u1 yamous Jo3uow 193W 03 pajans|
pue isn3ny u eyep pue isn3ny ui eyep s13eY3 spJepuess|
auljaseq 199](03 [IIM|  duljaseq 193]|03 [IM 22ua1ds ayy uodn
/W "yimous juapnis| 3\ "Yyamous Juay paseq uo; Jja1dwod
928nes 03 yaMN se @8nes 03 yaMN se Suipeal
yons ejep ) yans ejep I sapinoad epuad
asn M 3 asn M ag 1€ pue T AjARdY! epuad
1wod3q
sjuapnis alow 0}
M Y21YM 3IUBIIS
pue Suipeas ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ
[ETm saA| aezejes ‘siN “Re/|udy “Rey/jdy oes) 00°€TZ‘9 $ 00'002°9 $
ui se ||am se uer /53| uise ||am se uer /23a|  juased pue Joddns
u1 yamous Jojuow u1 yamous Jo3uow Suunsua se [am
pue isnSny ui eyep pue isnSny ui eyep se Ajjunwwod pue
auljaseq 199103 [|IM|  3uljaseq 393]|0 [|IM|  |00YIS By} Ul BIUIIIS!
3 "Yamou3 Juapnis| 3\ "Yimous Juapnis pue ‘yiey ‘vi3 ul
28nes 03 yaMN se @3nes 03 y3/\N Se|sa24nosal yym sjuased
yans ejep I yoans ejep I sdjay J03eulpiood;
asn M ap asn M 3 juaied ay J103eUIPI00 Juaied
-juapyold Suiwodaq € pue ‘z ‘T Auandy
sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IM Ya1ym yiew
pue Suipeas ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ
[ al0yaq s} Jezejes ‘sIN “Re/|udy “Rep/judy ‘elep| €T°V9L €S S ET'V9L'ES S
siuonuanIAu| ul'se ||am se uer /53| ulse ||am se uer /23@| 3uapnis uodn paseq
pey aney apm u1 yamous Jojuow U1 yamosg Jojuow|  SPasu JuIpNIS 193W
pue 3snSny ul ejep pue 3snSny ul ejep 03 sdnois pajasie;
auljaseq 309]|0J ||im|  duljaseq 323]|0 [|Im ‘llews jind [im
M "Yamoug Juapnis| 3 "Yimois Juapnis| sislUoIUBAIBIU| ‘YIBIA
28nes 03 yaMN se @3nes 01 y3MN se| pue Suipeas anoidw
yans ejep yiewy yans ejep yuewy - Z pue T # Auaiy
asn |im ap asn M ap aUINaT - ISIUORUBAIRIY|
-juapyold Suiwodaq
sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IIM YaIym yiew
pue Suipeas ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ
[Em aloyaq s} Jezejes ‘sIN “Ae/|udy “Rey/judy ‘elep| £1°505°9S S £1°505°95 S
siuonuanIAu| ulse ||am se uer /53| ulse ||am se uer /23@|  3uapnis uodn paseq
pey aney am U1 yamous Jojuow U1 yamosg Jojuow|  Spaau JuapN3S 193W

pue isnSny u eyep
auljaseq 323]|02 [|im
M "Yimous Juapnis
28nes 03 yaMN se

pue 3snSny ul ejep
auljaseq 323]|02 [|im
3 "Yyimous Juapnis
928nes 03 yaMN se

yons ejep ) 1
asn M 3

yons ejep ) 1
asn M 3
o0ad Suiwodaq
sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IM Y2Iym yiew
pue Suipeas ul %z
Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InO

U

03 sdnois pajasie;
‘llews jind [im
SISIUOIIUAAIRIY] ‘Yiew
pue Suipeas anodw|
-z pue T # Ay

HEeM3)S - ISIUOIIUBAIRIU|




69'v£2°88C

$

9L 9V vS

v

ON

Jezejes ‘sI

“Re/|udy

ul se ||am se uer /23q
u1 yamous Jo3uow
pue isnSny ui eyep
auljaseq 323]|02 [jim
3 "Yyimous Juapnis
928nes 03 yaMN se

“Re/|udy

ui se ||am se uer /33q
u1 yamous Jojuow
pue isnSny ul ejep
aujaseq 199]103 [IM
3M "Yimous Juapnis
28nes 03 yaMN se

yons ejep ) 1
asn M ap

yons ejep ) 1
asn |im ap

uapyosd Sul |

‘siamsue
3094100 3y Sunias;

10U 350y} djelpawal
se [|am se Jysney Suiaq
spaepueis pue s||njs|
ay3 Jo Aiaysew ainsua,
d|ay 03 sjuaLussasse;
3AI11BWLI0} 19NPU0D
pue Ajjenpiaipui

jasun

sjuapnis alow 0}
PE3| [IIM YaIym yiew
pue Suipeaa ul %z

Aq yimous syuapms
aseasoul 03 si [0S InQ

104 33Yd 03

3|qe aq |IM s1aydea)
*Aauapiyoud yrew
pue Suipeas anodw|
-z pue T 4 Auandy

S0°€89

S0°€89

$

spJeoq
3}YM JU3pN3s [enpiApu|




€2/8/8 8INJiIsqng JusuBWISd Buipesy 1053 ulduusy J8jeys
ceclelich a1njlIsgng jusuewlad 3ulpesy 1053 BINIO ‘1095
2¢/92/6 91NJIsgngs jusuewlad Burepay 103 ueye|ed ‘Payond
¢cl/S/6 21N113SgNS JUsUBWLIDd Suipeay 1053 eIPUOJY ‘ZaYdues-eeAy
1202/20/8 21N1115qNS JUdUBWIR 9-3 "anp3 "w3(3 ‘Buipesy 103 uuy-3|)pyoey |[2JoyL
ze/8/8 91N1115qNS JUBUBWIA 9-) uoneanp3 waf3 ‘Sutpeay 1053 ppoL ‘4eIns
Te/e/8 | USRS T UL Suipeay 9SOJ|3N ‘Hemals
2e/s/8 91N111SgnNS Jusuewlad 9-) uoneanp3 waj3 ‘Suipeay 1053 yieuuay Uajeyds
6T/02/L 91N}i3sgnS JusaueWIRd Suipeay 1053 uAyey ‘zayoues
120T/97/L Jayoes apelo pug Suipeay 1053 epulp ‘zandupoy
°T/1/8 J9Ydea] apetn 1S Suipeay An3 ‘zan8upoy
z7/01/8 31N11SgNS 1UBUBWIR 8uipeay 1053 911vUe|I ‘sowey
/LYt 91N1115GNS JUBUBWIA Suipeay 1053 |oSUeIA ‘OpanIND
1202/20/8 JayoesL apesn IsT 8uipeay 1053 A9|s97 ‘eweued
12/6/8 id 10s3 ‘N IABYD ‘sieo
LT/0T/8 uonesnp3 Alewlid ) a.d 3uipesy 1053 3llegeuuy ‘ss3PPIN
T/T/8 91N1ISqNS JUSUBWLIR 1053 eusz ‘olezeN
2e/1/8 Jaydes] apeso ST Suipeay 1053 BIUDSaA ‘Sa|eJO N
91/v/v 1aYoea] oy Suipeay eype | ‘eun
e/1/8 Jayoes] apelo Yig Sulpeay ‘|os3 Ased 891
12/8/T 9-)"onp3 "we|3 Suipeay 1053 elo|o ‘z3ezuo9
T/T/8 Jayoea] 9oua1dS Alejuswia|g 1053 unsuyl ‘uysneq
LT/01/8 uoneonp3 y-aid 9-) uoneanp3 ‘wa3 ‘Sulpeay 1053 elyruA) ‘saulaq
1202/97/¢L Jaydea] apels pug Suipeay 1053 BSSIPIA ‘piojmeld
1202/97/¢L Jayoea| apess pig Suipeay 1053 1yeJes ‘uojo)
1202/9¢/L Jaydea] apeso yiy 10S3 elape) ‘Aduse)
Y/LY/L Jayoea] apeso pig Suipeay 1053 J9YleaH ‘suing
12/S/v Jaydes| apeto pug 1053 euueng ‘elang
0z/6/€ Jayoea] oy Suipeay 1053 elJ9] ‘umolug
91/9¢/L 1aYoea] oy Suipeay |oJe) ‘ensny
2e/1/8 91N11SgNS Jusuewad 9-) uoneanp3 wa|3 ‘Suipesy 1053 eAlueys ‘OLRAY
ajeq Juswiubissy (s)uoneosyniag uain)y juawubissy p|oid-Jo-In0 19yoea)
PiIsi4 o InQ

¢zoz ‘Aienuep

sjeq bBunes|y pieog jouisig

looyog J9jey) sisulo) Jno4

Jooyog Jajieyo siauldod Jno4 -Jioday pjai4 jo IO

aweN |00yog Japeyn




o4 PENDA

A Learning 2020 company

Penda Learning Subscription Quote

Quote Name 2022 - 2023 - Site License Renewal - Four Created Date 1/11/2022
Corners Charter Schoo! Created By Jay Long
Type Renewal: School Site License

Expiration Date 7/29/2022
Quote Number 00000231

-Prepared For

Four Corners Charter School Contact:
9100 Teacher Ln Denise Thompson
Davenport, FL 33897-6212 dthompson@fourcornerscharter.org
Quantity Product List Price Sales Price Total Price
1.00 90 Minute Teacher Professional Development Webinar: 1 session $650.00 $0.00 $0.00
£l
1.00 Penda Science Site License: 1 site $5,000.00 $3,750.00 $3,750.00
Subtotal $3,750.00
Discount 0.00%
Total Price $3,750.00

Additional Notes

® Access from August 1, 2022 - July 31, 2023

® |ncludes unlimited number of student subscription licenses for science in grades 3 -5

® |ncludes 1 90-minute teacher PD webinar at no additional charge ($650.00 savings)

® Single sign-on via Clever, auto-data rostering via CSUSA OneRoster, and Schoology integration are included at
no additional charge - PLEASE NOTE: your school will need to fill in and subject a CSUSA "Change Request”
form to have Clever single sign-on (SSO) and auto-rostering enabled.

Subscription Includes

Penda Learning Products - cloud-based digital science content for grades 3-10

¢ Align - content alignment to district scope and sequence by grade, subject, course via Penda pacing assistance service (PAS)
® Assign - student activities assigned weekly based on Penda PAS alignment
* Assess - automated reporting as follows:
¢ Weekly Assignment Mastery Reports, Late Assignment Reports, and teacher Class Mastery Reports by student delivered via
email to teachers that support data-driven instruction and RTI

® Monthly School Administrator Reports and Grade-Level Mastery Reports delivered via email to school administrators that
support data-driven instruction

* Achieve - Penda features/functionality that support research-based best teaching practices
® Data-Driven Instruction — weekly automated Class Mastery Reports sent to teachers via email

* RT| (Al Tiers) — intervention group feature, ability to assign activities to whole class (Tier 1), intervention group (Tier 2), or
individual student (Tier 3), advanced report filters for intervention groups, and school achievement gap classifications (lower
quartile, ELL, SED, SWD, ethnicity)

¢ Differentiated Instruction —~ Penda Activity Builder tool allows teachers to create custom activities or tailor existing activities to
differentiate instruction (content, product, process).



3/24/22, 2:45 PM Amazon.com Shopping Cart

All~  Enter keyword or product number
. . EN Hello, Sergio
D tments  Get th IT Suppl Buy A Add People ' .
epariments = app pRiles Hy Agein P Account for Mydogsecurity ... Lists

. Sergio, get a $200 Amazon Gift Card upon approval for the Amazon Business Prime American

Express Card with an eligible Prime membership. Terms apply.

Shopping Cart

Price

w Dry Erase Lapboards Student Pack of 30 | 9 x $35.95

12 inch Double Sided White Boards (plus Business Price
In Stock Save $2.00
Shipped from: maxfind Clip Coupon

Gift options not available. Learn more

\ Color: Plain
& e Size: 30
; _,? — Delete  Save for later

Compare with similar items

')
9

Subtotal (19 items): $683.05

Your Items

Saved for later (32 items) Buy it again

NYX PROFESSIONAL MAKEUP #1 Best SellerXin Chair Pads
Epic Ink Liner, Waterproof Li... Sweet Home Collection Chair
$5.99 i ! Cushion Memory Foam Pads...
Business Price $52.10
In Stock Business Price

In Stock
Size: Pack of 1 ! & FREE Returns
Color: Black | Color: Charcoal Gray
Ve ol Size: 6 Count (Pack of 1)
{ Move to cart

Move to cart

Delete e
Add to list { Delete

Add to list

Compare with similar items
Compare with similar items

https://www.amazon.com/gp/cart/view.htmlI?ref_=abn_tools_cart_nf

Try 19
Business Prime

; Learn More

Subtotal (19 items): $683.05

Proceed to checkout

Sponsored Products related to items in

your cart

———

., >
]
3
= !
t—2
- Y
}:% 1
r £

* VIZ-PRO Dry Erase

18,292
$60.04

See all buying opaoris)

Magnetic Mobile
91

$149.99
Seeall l;uying options)

Rolling White Board Dry
28

$152.99

See all buying options

Magnetic Dry Erase
2,622

$129.99

See all buying options

1/4



3/24/22, 3:11 PM Amazon.com Shopping Cart

All ~  Enter keyword or product number o ' c{rl.\ Add team members
. . EN Helle, Sergio Try 18
Departments  Get the app IT Supplies Buy Again  Add People Account for Mydogsecurity ... Lists Business Prime

' Sergio, get a $200 Amazon Gift Card upon approval for the Amazon Business Prime American

Express Card with an eligible Prime membership. Terms apply.

Shopping Cart

Price

Double Sided Dry Erase Boards - Lined/Plain, $37.91
Ohuhu 25-Pack 9 x 12 Inch Whiteboards Set,  Quantity Price
In Stock

[ Thisis a gift Learn more
Number of items: 25

18 I Delete  Save for later

Compare with similar items

Subtotal (18 items): $682.38

Your Items

Saved for later (32 items) Buy it again

NYX PROFESSIONAL MAKEUP
Epic ink Liner, Waterproof Li...

#1 Best SellerXin Chair Pads
Sweet Home Collection Chair

$5.99 " | Cushion Memory Foam Pads...
Business Price $52.10
In Stock Business Price
In Stock
Size: Pack of 1 & FREE Returns
Color: Black Color: Charcoal Gray
Size: 6 Count (Pack of 1)
i Move to cart } - .
i Move to cart }
Delete l
Add to list Delete
Compare with similar items Add to list

Compare with similar items

i !
i
H i

https://www.amazon.com/gp/cart/view.html/ref=dp_atch_dss_cart

| Learn More

Subtotal (18 items): $682.38
([ This order contains a gift

Proceed to checkout

Sponsored Products related to items in
your cart

B /  VIZ-PRO Double-Sided

-
/ 1,487
$112.50

Pt rmmerpotns 4

See all buying options

P s S
- 48"x36" Mobile
‘iln . 714

$141.89

i 1 See all buying options

v -1 DexBoard Magnetic
ity 19
] $149.50
See all buying options
- L}

=80 Dry Erase Whiteboard

= 363
At $159.97

See all buying options

!
J

1/4



Section Cover Page

V. New Business

] Informational
] For Discussion
X For Action

Notes:




State Board of Education Manny Diaz, Jr.
Commissioner of Education

Tom Grady, Chair

Ben Gibson, Vice Chair
Members

Monesia Brown
Esther Byrd

Grazie Pozo Christie

Ryan Petty

Joe York

MEMORANDUM Contact Information:
Adam Emerson

TO: School District Superintendents 850-245-9631

Charter School Leaders Adam.Emerson@fldoe.org

DPS: 2022-192

FROM: Adam Emerson

DATE: December 9, 2022

SUBJECT:  New State Board of Education Rule Regarding Special Magistrate for
Unresolved Student Welfare Complaints at Charter Schools

On March 28, 2022, the Governor signed House Bill 1557 Parental Rights in Education into law,
protecting the rights of parents in need of additional assistance with certain disputes that are not timely
resolved by the school district.

On October 19, 2022, the State Board of Education adopted Rule 6A-6.0791, Florida Administrative
Code (F.A.C.), Special Magistrate for Unresolved Student Welfare Complaints at Charter Schools. This
rule is applicable to all charter schools. The purpose of Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C., is to support parental
rights by providing charter school parents with a more expedient route to resolve certain disputes, in lieu
of filing a lawsuit in court.

Each charter school must adopt procedures for a parent to notify the principal, or the principal’s designee,
of their concerns and the process for resolving those concerns within seven calendar days after
notification by the parent. If that complaint cannot be resolved by the charter school, then the charter must
fully cooperate in its local school district’s resolution procedures and comply with the district’s decision
for resolution of the complaint.

If a parental complaint involving certain types of disputes is not resolved at the local level by a charter
school principal within seven days, or subsequently, a school district within 30 days, a parent may submit
a form to the Florida Department of Education requesting the appointment of a Special Magistrate. If the
request is granted, a Special Magistrate would hold a hearing and provide a recommended decision to the
State Board of Education on the dispute between a parent and the school district.

All costs a district incurs for reviewing and responding to a complaint lodged by a parent enrolled in a
charter school under this rule is a service provided by the school district to the charter school. Contracts
providing for payment of such services are limited to the district’s actual costs unless mutually agreed to
by the school district and the charter school.

ADAM EMERSON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
OFFICE OF INDEPENDENT EDUCATION AND PARENTAL CHOICE

www.fldoe.org
325 W. Gaines Street — Suite 1502 | Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400 | 850-245-0509



New State Board of Education Rule Regarding Special Magistrate for Unresolved Student
Welfare Complaints

December 9, 2022

Page Two

The types of complaints that parents may request a Special Magistrate must be based upon the provisions
set forth in section (s.) 1001.42(8)(c)1.-6., Florida Statutes:

1. In accordance with the rights of parents enumerated in ss. 1002.20 and 1014.04,
adopt procedures for notifying a student’s parent if there is a change in the student’s
services or monitoring related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or
well-being and the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment
for the student. The procedures must reinforce the fundamental right of parents to make
decisions regarding the upbringing and control of their children by requiring school
district personnel to encourage a student to discuss issues relating to his or her well-being
with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue with the parent. The
procedures may not prohibit parents from accessing any of their student’s education and
health records created, maintained, or used by the school district, as required by s.
1002.22(2).

2. A school may not adopt procedures or student support forms that prohibit school
district personnel from notifying a parent about his or her student’s mental, emotional, or
physical health or well-being, or a change in related services or monitoring, or that
encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student to withhold from a parent such
information. School district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental
notification of and involvement in critical decisions affecting a student’s mental,
emotional, or physical health or well-being. This subparagraph does not prohibit a school
district from adopting procedures that permit school personnel to withhold such
information from a parent if a reasonably prudent person would believe that disclosure
would result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect, as those terms are defined in s. 39.01.

3. Classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on sexual orientation
or gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 or in a manner that is
not age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students in accordance with state
standards.

4. Student support services training developed or provided by a school district to
school district personnel must adhere to student services guidelines, standards, and
frameworks established by the Department of Education.

5. At the beginning of the school year, each school shall notify parents of each
health care service offered at their student’s school and the option to withhold consent or
decline any specific service. Parental consent to a health care service does not waive the
parent’s right to access his or her student’s educational or health records or to be notified
about a change in his or her student’s services or monitoring as provided by this
paragraph.

6. Before administering a student well-being questionnaire or health screening form
to a student in kindergarten through grade 3, the school district must provide the
questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the permission of the
parent.



New State Board of Education Rule Regarding Special Magistrate for Unresolved Student
Welfare Complaints

December 9, 2022

Page Three

Obligations for charter schools under the rule include:

e Adopt procedures for a parent to seek relief from the school principal or designee;

e Ifthe charter school cannot resolve the dispute, it must fully cooperate in the school district’s
resolution procedures and comply with the district’s decision for resolution; and

e Designate at least one person responsible for responding to Departmental inquiries regarding a
request for appointment of a Special Magistrate and notify the Department of the name and e-
mail address of the individual.

Obligations for school districts under the rule include:

o Designate at least one person responsible for responding to the Department’s inquires regarding
requests for a Special Magistrate;

e Within five days of receipt of notice that a parent has requested the appointment of a Special
Magistrate, the school district must provide a statement addressing whether any of the grounds
for dismissal of the request apply to the parent’s request; and

e Within twenty days of notice that a Special Magistrate has been appointed, the school district
must ensure that an agreement for payment has been reached with the Special Magistrate.

Thank you for your attention and implementation of this important process.

AE
Attachment 1: Rule language as adopted: Rule 6A-1.094125, F.A.C., Special Magistrate for Unresolved
Student Welfare Complaints

Attachment 2: Form - Florida Department of Education Parental Request for Appointment of a Special
Magistrate



6A-6.0791 Special Magistrate for Unresolved Student Welfare Complaints at Charter Schools.

(1) Purpose. The purpose of this rule is to provide information about the process for a parent of a student enrolled in a charter
school to request appointment of a Special Magistrate for disputes involving the student’s health, safety, or welfare as described in
Section 1001.42(8)(c), F.S.

(2) Definitions. In this rule, the terms have the following meaning:

(a) “Days” means business days and excludes state, federal and school district holidays;

(b) “Department” means the Florida Department of Education;

(c) “Parental Request for Appointment of a Special Magistrate for Charter School Students” or “Parental Request” means the
written form adopted by and incorporated into this rule.

(d) “Parent” means the definition of that term provided in Section 1000.21, F.S.;

(e) “Parties” means the parent who submitted a request for appointment of a Special Magistrate and the school district and
charter school governing board;

(f) “Special Magistrate” means an administrative law judge provided by the Division of Administrative Hearings under Section
120.65(6), F.S., or a person appointed by the Commissioner of Education who is a member of the Florida Bar in good standing with
a minimum of five years of administrative law experience;

(3) Parental Obligations. In order to request appointment of a Special Magistrate, a parent must:

(a) Complete the form entitled “Parental Request for Appointment of a Special Magistrate for Charter School Students;”

(b) Describe the nature of the dispute;

(c) Describe the resolution or relief sought with the charter school principal or designee appointed by the charter school
governing board and subsequently, with the school district that sponsors the charter school;

(d) Describe the resolution sought from the Special Magistrate and the State Board of Education;

(e) Demonstrate that before filing for the appointment of a Special Magistrate, resolution of the dispute was sought by the parent
with:

1.The principal or designee appointed by the charter school governing board to resolve parental disputes; and

2. The school district, all in accordance with the procedures adopted by the school district for resolution of the dispute:

(f) Provide and maintain accurate contact information such as an email address, telephone number and mailing address for the
parent.

(4) School District Obligations. Each school district must:

(a) Develop procedures to resolve student health, safety, or welfare complaints under Section 1001.42(8)(c), F.S., for a student
who is enrolled in a charter school sponsored by the district. These procedures must include the following:

1. The process for resolution when the charter school principal or designee is unable to resolve the dispute to the parent’s
satisfaction;

2. Providing a parent with a statement of the reasons for not resolving the dispute, when the district is unable to resolve the
complaint; and

3. The time limits for a response or notice of reasons for not resolving the dispute, which must be no more than 30 days from
receipt of the complaint.

(b) Designate at least one person responsible for responding to Departmental inquiries regarding a request for appointment of a
Special Magistrate for charter school student complaints and notify the Department of the name and email address of the individual;

(c) Within five (5) days of receipt of notice that a parent has requested the appointment of a Special Magistrate as described in
subsection (3), provide to the Department a statement addressing whether any of the grounds for dismissal as described in paragraph
(7)(b) of this rule apply to the parental request for appointment of a Special Magistrate; and

(d) Expeditiously contract for payment of a Special Magistrate appointed by the Commissioner of Education and notify the
Department within no more than twenty (20) days after receiving notice of the appointment of a Special Magistrate that an
agreement has been reached for payment with the appointed Special Magistrate.

(5) Charter School Governing Board’s Obligations. To ensure that the Special Magistrate process is available to a parent of a
student enrolled in a charter school, a charter school governing board must:

(a) Adopt procedures to notify parents of the following:

1. The ability to seek relief from the school principal or designee for a dispute under Sections 1001.42(8)(c)1.-7., F.S.;

2. If the parent remains aggrieved after receiving the response from the principal or designee, the ability to seek relief from the



school district that sponsors the charter school; and

3. The time limits for a response, which must be no more than seven days from receipt of the complaint for the
principal/designee and no more than 30 days from receipt of the complaint for the school district.

(b) Fully cooperate in the district’s resolution procedures and comply with the district’s decision for resolution of the complaint;
and

(c) Designate at least one person responsible for responding to Departmental inquiries regarding a request for appointment of a
Special Magistrate and notify the Department of the name and email address of the individual.

(6) Financial Costs Related to Disputes Involving Special Magistrate Process for Charter School Students. All costs a district
incurs for reviewing and responding to a complaint lodged by a parent of a student enrolled in a charter school under this rule, is a
service provided by the school district to the charter school; contracts for such services are limited to the district’s actual costs unless
mutually agreed to by the school district and charter school, based upon the provisions of Section 1002.33(20)(b), F.S.

(7) Department of Education Obligations.

(a) Review of “Parental Request for Appointment of a Special Magistrate for Charter School Students.” Upon receipt of the
form entitled “Parental Request for Appointment of a Special Magistrate for Charter School Students,” the Department will:

1. Review the form and provide an opportunity for the parent to provide missing or supplemental information within twenty
(20) days of receipt of a Departmental notice that missing or supplemental information is needed;

2. Notify the charter and the school district of receipt of the Parental Request for Appointment of a Special Magistrate for
Charter Schools; and

3. Provide written notice to the parent, charter school and school district that the request has been provided to the Commissioner
of Education for consideration or provide notice of dismissal of the Parental Request.

(b) Dismissal of Parental Request for Appointment of Special Magistrate by the Department. The Department will dismiss a
Parental Request under the following circumstances:

1. The parent notifies the Department that the dispute has been resolved or withdrawn;

2. The Parental Request form has not been substantially completed, after the opportunity to provide missing or supplemental
information has been provided;

3. The parent has not demonstrated full and complete use of any charter school and school district procedures for resolving the
dispute;

4. The matter in dispute falls under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, as amended, and its implementing
regulations, or under Section 1003.56, F.S., and rules adopted by the Department to implement Section 1003.56, F.S., or is otherwise
outside of the scope of the student welfare requirements set forth in Sections 1001.42(8)(c)1.-7., F.S.; or

5. The parent has failed to maintain accurate contact information with the Department or the Special Magistrate.

(c) Obligations Post Appointment of Special Magistrate. Upon appointment of a Special Magistrate by the Commissioner under
subsection (8) of this rule, the Department will:

1. Provide the parties notice of the appointment of a Special Magistrate and advise the parties of the following:

a. The name and contact information of the Special Magistrate;

b. The time frame when the Special Magistrate is expected to provide a written recommendation to the State Board of
Education; and

¢. The requirement to maintain accurate contact information with the Department and the Special Magistrate;

2. Provide to the Special Magistrate the following:

a. The Parental Request and any supplemental information received by the Department upon review of the Parental Request;
and

b. To allow sufficient time for review by the State Board of Education of a recommendation rendered by the Special Magistrate,
the time frame(s) when a recommended decision is expected to be provided by the Special Magistrate to the parties and the State
Board of Education. This timeframe may be extended by agreement of the parties.

(8) Commissioner of Education. The Commissioner of Education will review each pending completed Parental Request and
decide whether to appoint a Special Magistrate utilizing the following factors:

(a) Whether there is authority and the ability to provide effective relief to the parent through the Special Magistrate process;

(b) Whether the parent is seeking or has already sought relief in court;

(c) Whether due to a change in circumstances, such as a change in a student’s school or grade level or a change in procedures or



training, the dispute is moot or not ripe; and

(d) Whether grounds for dismissal of the Parental Request, as described in paragraph (7)(b) of this rule, are found to exist.

(9) Special Magistrate Procedures.

(a) Where an administrative law judge provided by the Division of Administrative Hearings is available and assigned to act as
the Special Magistrate, proceedings before the Special Magistrate will be held in accordance with the rules of the Division of
Administrative Hearings, except where inconsistent with this rule or Section 1001.42(8)(c), F.S.

(b) Where a Division of Administrative Hearings administrative law judge is unavailable or the Commissioner appoints the
Special Magistrate, the following procedures apply:

1. The Special Magistrate shall set and notify all parties of the time and place of the hearings.

2. Any party directly involved in the proceeding may appear at the hearing with or without counsel or by other representative.

3. The parties or the Special Magistrate may call, examine, and cross-examine witnesses and enter evidence into the record.
Witnesses shall be examined under oath. Evidentiary matters before the Special Magistrate shall be governed by the Administrative
Procedure Act.

4. The Special Magistrate may permit the submission of written memorandum by the parties.

(c) Following the close of the hearing, the Special Magistrate shall prepare a recommended decision, determining whether a
parent has demonstrated a violation of the requirements of Section 1001.42(8)(c), F.S., by the charter school. The Special
Magistrate’s recommended decision shall be based upon the evidence presented and argument made before the Special Magistrate.
The recommendation shall include findings of fact and recommendations for resolution of the dispute by the parties.

(d) The Special Magistrate’s recommended decision is due within thirty (30) days of the date a parent request is received by the
Special Magistrate from the Department. The 30-day time frame can be extended upon agreement. A party may be deemed to have
agreed to an extension if unavailable for hearing at the date and time set or where a party fails to timely respond to scheduling orders
issued by the Special Magistrate.

(10) The following form is incorporated by reference and may be obtained at https://www.fldoe.org/schools/k-12-public-
schools/: Parental Request for Appointment of a Special Magistrate for Charter School Students, Form No. CSSM-1
(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-14915) (effective November 2022).

Rulemaking Authority 1001.02(1), (2)(n), 1001.42(8)(c)7.b. F'S. Law Implemented 1001.42(8)(c)7.b., 1002.33(9)(p)2. FS. History—New 11-22-22.



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
PARENTAL REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF A SPECIAL MAGISTRATE
FOR CHARTER SCHOOL STUDENTS

This form must be completed to request that the Commissioner of Education appoint a Special Magistrate to
recommend resolution of certain disputes a parent or guardian has with their child’s charter school.

What is a Special Magistrate? A special magistrate is a member of the Florida Bar in good standing and who has at
least 5 years of experience in administrative law. A hearing before the Special Magistrate provides a parent or
guardian with the opportunity to demonstrate a violation of certain rights or procedures of the charter school and
where the school and the school district are given the opportunity to support the charter school’s action. After a
hearing, the Special Magistrate will provide a written decision that operates as a recommendation for consideration
by the State Board of Education.

A hearing before a Special Magistrate is an alternative to filing an action in court for relief.

Who can request the appointment of a Special Magistrate? The request can only be made by a parent or
guardian of a student at the charter school that is the subject of the dispute.

When can a request be made? A request can be made only after a parent or guardian has sought to resolve the
dispute with the charter school and school district based upon the procedures adopted by the charter school and the
school district where the student is enrolled.

Each charter school must adopt procedures for a parent or guardian to seek resolution of certain disputes with a
school principal or his designee and then, if the dispute remains unresolved, the school district must provide an
additional method to attempt to resolve the dispute at the district level. If the dispute is not resolved, a school district
must provide a parent or guardian a statement of the reasons for not resolving the dispute. These procedures will
vary from school to school and from district to district; however, the procedures must be carefully followed before
requesting the appointment of a Special Magistrate.

What types of disputes can be considered by a Special Magistrate? A Special Magistrate is available for some,
but not all kinds of disputes. The types of disputes a Special Magistrate can consider are listed below on page 2 of
this form under “Classify the Nature of Your Dispute.”

o A Special Magistrate is not available to resolve disputes alleging a violation of the educational rights of a
student with a disability under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA 2004) and corresponding
state requirements. Please see Rule 6A-6.03311, Fla. Admin. Code, for the process to resolve these types
of disputes.

A special magistrate will not be appointed for a number of other reasons, such as resolution of the dispute, a change
in circumstances, the failure to complete charter school and school district procedures for resolution, or the inability to
provide the relief sought.

How will notice be provided whether a special magistrate has been appointed? The Department will provide a
parent or guardian and the school district written notice once a decision has been made.

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.



Name of Parent or Guardian: Name of Student:

Student ID Number: Date of Incident: Grade Level When Dispute Occurred:

School District; School:

Parent or Guardian Contact Information:

(Email Address)
Mailing Address:

(Qtraant)

CLASSIFY THE NATURE OF YOUR DISPUTE

Check which of the following school district requirements your dispute concerns:

OIn accordance with the rights of parents enumerated in ss. 1002.20 and 1014.04, F.S., the school district must adopt
procedures for notifying a student’s parent if there is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the
student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive
learning environment for the student. The procedures must reinforce the fundamental right of parents to make decisions
regarding the upbringing and control of their children by requiring school district personnel to encourage a student to discuss
issues relating to the student’s well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue with the parent. The
procedures may not prohibit parents from accessing any of their student's educational and health records created,
maintained, or used by the school district, as required by s. 1001.22(2), F.S.

CJA school district may not adopt procedures or student support forms that prohibit school district personnel from notifying a
parent about his or her student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being, or a change in related services or
monitoring, or that encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student to withhold from a parent such information. School
district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental notification of and involvement in critical decisions
affecting a student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being. This requirement does not prohibit a school
district from adopting procedures that permit school personnel to withhold information from a parent if a reasonably prudent
person would believe that disclosure would result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect as defined in s. 39.01, F.S.

CIClassroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on sexual orientation or gender identity may not occur in
kindergarten through grade 3 or in a manner that is not age appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students in
accordance with state standards.

[ Student support services training developed or provided by a school district to school district personnel must adhere to
student services guidelines, standards, and frameworks established by the Department of Education.

CJAt the beginning of the school year, the school district must notify parents of each healthcare service offered at their
student’s school and the option to withhold consent or decline any specific service. Parental consent to a health care
service does not waive the parent’s right to access his or her student's educational health records or to be notified about a
change in his or her student’s services or monitoring.

[C1Before administering a well-being questionnaire or health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3,
the school district must provide the questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the permission of the
parent.

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.




DESCRIBE THE DISPUTE WITH THE CHARTER SCHOOL

Briefly describe the dispute with the charter school that you are requesting to be heard before a Special Magistrate:

RESOLUTION
Yes [1 No [ As the parent or guardian, | have attempted to resolve the dispute with the charter school and the school
district by utilizing all of the procedures adopted by the school and the school district to resolve the dispute or concern. Please
attach the responses received from the school and school district, and attach the district's Statement of Reasons for Not
Resolving the Dispute or Concern.
Date School Principal Responded to Dispute or Concern (Please attach response)

Date School District Responded to Dispute or Concern (Please attach response)

Date School District Provided a Statement of Reasons for not Resolving the Dispute or Concern
(Please attach response)

Describe the Resolution Requested from the School and School District:

Describe the Resolution You Would Like the Special Magistrate and the State Board of Education to Provide to Resolve the
Dispute:

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

[l understand that the hearing before the Special Magistrate and the State Board of Education is open to the public and that
records relevant to the dispute may be disclosed to the public.

Signature of Parent or Guardian Date

HOW TO SUBMIT THIS FORM TO THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:

The completed from along with required documentation must be sent via email to the following address:

SpecialMagistrate@fldoe.org

or by U.S. mail to:

Florida Department of Education
325 West Gaines Street, Suite 224
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.




Parental Rights in Education Policy

WHEREAS, The 2022 Florida Legislature passed House Bill 1557, Parental Rights in
Education which Governor Ron DeSantis signed into law on March 28, 2022 with an effective
date of July 1, 2022.

WHEREAS, This Policy is to ensure the charter school governing board (the “Governing
Board”) will comply with the newly amended Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, relating to student
welfare and procedures for notifying a student’s parent if there is a change in the student’s services
or monitoring related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the
school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student.

WHEREAS, This Policy also provides the procedural requirements for the Governing
Board and the relationship/duties of the School Board which serves as the Governing Board’s
sponsor in relation to the parents fundamental right of parents to make decisions regarding the
upbringing and control of their children. Nothing in this Policy is intended to prohibit parents from
accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or used by the
Governing Board, as required by Section 1002.22(2), Florida Statutes.

NOW THEREFORE, The Governing Board, respecting and reinforcing the fundamental
rights of parents to make decisions and control of their children and as required by Section 1001.42,
Florida Statutes and further enumerated in Sections 1002.20 and 1014.04, Florida Statutes provides
the following:

1. Notification Requirements

The Governing Board shall notify and provide parents/guardians of the following
information and services offered at the School at the beginning of each academic school year:

a. That classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on sexual orientation or
gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 or in a manner that is not
age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students in accordance with state
standards.

b. Each health care service offered at their student’s school and the option to withhold consent
or decline any specific service.

c. Provide an option that parental consent to a health care service does not waive a parent’s
right to access his or her student’s educational or health records or to be notified about a
change in his or her student’s services or monitoring.

d. Require consent from the parent/guardian before administering a student well-being
questionnaire or health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3.

II. Parent Grievance Procedures

In the event a parent/guardian feels that any of the above actions in Section I(a-d) of this
Policy has or has not occurred, the parent shall first email the principal or his or her designee
regarding concerns which is believed to occur within his or her student’s school.
Page 1 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



Upon receipt of the email and/or written correspondence from the student’s
parent/guardian, the principal or his or her designee shall immediately cause to be investigated
whether a violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes has occurred. The principal or his or her
designee shall, within seven (7) calendar days after notification by the parent, provide a written
summary of the investigative findings and any steps to be taken and available to both the School
and the parent.

If the parent/guardian, within thirty (30) days after notification to the principal or his or her
designee of the alleged violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, by the parent that the
concern remains unresolved, the Governing Board shall appoint a third party (other than the
principal or his or her designee) to investigate whether a violation of Section 1001.42, Florida
Statutes has occurred or if there is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the
student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and/or the school’s ability to provide
a safe and supportive learning environment for the student and such change has not been properly
communicated to the Parent.

The Governing Board shall receive the summary of findings from the third party and report
the findings to the School Board for the School Board to make a final determination of whether a
violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes has occurred or if there is a change in the student’s
services or monitoring related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being
and/or the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student
and such change has not been properly communicated to the Parent.

If a concern is not resolved by the School Board, a parent may:

a. Request the Commissioner of Education to appoint a special magistrate who is a member
of The Florida Bar in good standing and who has at least 5 years’ experience in
administrative law; or

1. The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the dispute over the School’s
and School Board’s procedure or practice, consider information provided by the
school, and render a recommended decision for resolution to the State Board of
Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the parent.

ii.  The State Board of Education must approve or reject the recommended decision at
its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 calendar days and no more
than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is transmitted.

iii.  The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the school district.

b. Bring an action against the school district to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school
district procedure or practice violates this paragraph and seek injunctive relief. A court may
award damages and shall award reasonable attorney fees and court costs to a parent who
receives declaratory or injunctive relief.

I11. Required Communication from Charter School

Page 2 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



In the event a charter school principal or the principal's designee is directed to notify a
parent by the Governing Board pursuant to this Policy, the charter school principal or the
principal's designee shall make a reasonable attempt to meet and with the student have the student
discuss the issues relating to their upbringing with their parents prior to the formal written
notification to the student's parent/guardian.

For purposes of this policy, “a reasonable attempt to notify” means the exercise of
reasonable diligence and care by the principal or the principal’s designee to make contact with the
student’s parent, guardian, or other known contact whom the student’s parent or guardian has
authorized to receive notifications.

At a minimum, the principal or the principal’s designee must take the following actions:

a. Use available methods of communication to contact the student’s parent, guardian,
or other known emergency contact, including but not limited to, telephone calls,
text messages, e-mails, and voice mail messages following the notification of a
when there is a change in the student’ s services or monitoring related to the
student’ s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and/or the school’

s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student.

b. Document the method and number of attempts made to contact the student’s parent,

guardian, or other known emergency contact, and the outcome of each attempt.

A principal or his or her designee who successfully notifies any other known emergency
contact may share only the information necessary to alert such contact that the parent or caregiver

must be contacted. All such information must be in compliance with federal and state law.

IV. Delayed Communication from Charter School

The principal or the principal’s designee may delay notification pursuant to this Policy if:

a. The principal or the principal’s designee deems the delay to be in the student’s best
interest and if there is knowledge, suspicion, or reason to suspect that such
notification may result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect; or

b. The principal or the principal’s designee reasonably believes that such delay is
necessary to avoid jeopardizing the health and safety of the student.

V. Conflict of Law

This policy is intended to supplement Sections 1001.41, 1002.20 and 1014.04, Florida Statutes.
If there is any provision of this policy which conflicts with and Florida Statute, the Florida Statute
shall control. In the event the Department of Education updates, as necessary, school counseling
frameworks and standards; educator practices and professional conduct principles; and any other
student services personnel guidelines, standards, or frameworks in accordance with the
requirements of this act, the Governing Board shall adopt and incorporate such updated

Page 3 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



frameworks and standards in compliance with this Policy, Florida Administrative Code, and
Florida Statutes.

VI Effective Date.

This policy became effective July 1, 2022. The Governing Board reserves the right to
change provisions of this Policy at any time in the future.

Page 4 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
PARENTAL REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF A SPECIAL MAGISTRATE
FOR CHARTER SCHOOL STUDENTS

This form must be completed to request that the Commissioner of Education appoint a Special Magistrate to
recommend resolution of certain disputes a parent or guardian has with their child’s charter school.

What is a Special Magistrate? A special magistrate is a member of the Florida Bar in good standing and who has at
least 5 years of experience in administrative law. A hearing before the Special Magistrate provides a parent or
guardian with the opportunity to demonstrate a violation of certain rights or procedures of the charter school and
where the school and the school district are given the opportunity to support the charter school’s action. After a
hearing, the Special Magistrate will provide a written decision that operates as a recommendation for consideration
by the State Board of Education.

A hearing before a Special Magistrate is an alternative to filing an action in court for relief.

Who can request the appointment of a Special Magistrate? The request can only be made by a parent or
guardian of a student at the charter school that is the subject of the dispute.

When can a request be made? A request can be made only after a parent or guardian has sought to resolve the
dispute with the charter school and school district based upon the procedures adopted by the charter school and the
school district where the student is enrolled.

Each charter school must adopt procedures for a parent or guardian to seek resolution of certain disputes with a
school principal or his designee and then, if the dispute remains unresolved, the school district must provide an
additional method to attempt to resolve the dispute at the district level. If the dispute is not resolved, a school district
must provide a parent or guardian a statement of the reasons for not resolving the dispute. These procedures will
vary from school to school and from district to district; however, the procedures must be carefully followed before
requesting the appointment of a Special Magistrate.

What types of disputes can be considered by a Special Magistrate? A Special Magistrate is available for some,
but not all kinds of disputes. The types of disputes a Special Magistrate can consider are listed below on page 2 of
this form under “Classify the Nature of Your Dispute.”

o A Special Magistrate is not available to resolve disputes alleging a violation of the educational rights of a
student with a disability under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA 2004) and corresponding
state requirements. Please see Rule 6A-6.03311, Fla. Admin. Code, for the process to resolve these types
of disputes.

A special magistrate will not be appointed for a number of other reasons, such as resolution of the dispute, a change
in circumstances, the failure to complete charter school and school district procedures for resolution, or the inability to
provide the relief sought.

How will notice be provided whether a special magistrate has been appointed? The Department will provide a
parent or guardian and the school district written notice once a decision has been made.

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.



Name of Parent or Guardian: Name of Student:

Student ID Number: Date of Incident: Grade Level When Dispute Occurred:

School District; School:

Parent or Guardian Contact Information:

(Email Address)
Mailing Address:

(Qtraant)

CLASSIFY THE NATURE OF YOUR DISPUTE

Check which of the following school district requirements your dispute concerns:

OIn accordance with the rights of parents enumerated in ss. 1002.20 and 1014.04, F.S., the school district must adopt
procedures for notifying a student’s parent if there is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the
student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive
learning environment for the student. The procedures must reinforce the fundamental right of parents to make decisions
regarding the upbringing and control of their children by requiring school district personnel to encourage a student to discuss
issues relating to the student’s well-being with his or her parent or to facilitate discussion of the issue with the parent. The
procedures may not prohibit parents from accessing any of their student's educational and health records created,
maintained, or used by the school district, as required by s. 1001.22(2), F.S.

CJA school district may not adopt procedures or student support forms that prohibit school district personnel from notifying a
parent about his or her student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being, or a change in related services or
monitoring, or that encourage or have the effect of encouraging a student to withhold from a parent such information. School
district personnel may not discourage or prohibit parental notification of and involvement in critical decisions
affecting a student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being. This requirement does not prohibit a school
district from adopting procedures that permit school personnel to withhold information from a parent if a reasonably prudent
person would believe that disclosure would result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect as defined in s. 39.01, F.S.

CIClassroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on sexual orientation or gender identity may not occur in
kindergarten through grade 3 or in a manner that is not age appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students in
accordance with state standards.

[ Student support services training developed or provided by a school district to school district personnel must adhere to
student services guidelines, standards, and frameworks established by the Department of Education.

CJAt the beginning of the school year, the school district must notify parents of each healthcare service offered at their
student’s school and the option to withhold consent or decline any specific service. Parental consent to a health care
service does not waive the parent’s right to access his or her student's educational health records or to be notified about a
change in his or her student’s services or monitoring.

[C1Before administering a well-being questionnaire or health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3,
the school district must provide the questionnaire or health screening form to the parent and obtain the permission of the
parent.

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.




DESCRIBE THE DISPUTE WITH THE CHARTER SCHOOL

Briefly describe the dispute with the charter school that you are requesting to be heard before a Special Magistrate:

RESOLUTION
Yes [1 No [ As the parent or guardian, | have attempted to resolve the dispute with the charter school and the school
district by utilizing all of the procedures adopted by the school and the school district to resolve the dispute or concern. Please
attach the responses received from the school and school district, and attach the district's Statement of Reasons for Not
Resolving the Dispute or Concern.
Date School Principal Responded to Dispute or Concern (Please attach response)

Date School District Responded to Dispute or Concern (Please attach response)

Date School District Provided a Statement of Reasons for not Resolving the Dispute or Concern
(Please attach response)

Describe the Resolution Requested from the School and School District:

Describe the Resolution You Would Like the Special Magistrate and the State Board of Education to Provide to Resolve the
Dispute:

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.




ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

[l understand that the hearing before the Special Magistrate and the State Board of Education is open to the public and that
records relevant to the dispute may be disclosed to the public.

Signature of Parent or Guardian Date

HOW TO SUBMIT THIS FORM TO THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:

The completed from along with required documentation must be sent via email to the following address:

SpecialMagistrate@fldoe.org

or by U.S. mail to:

Florida Department of Education
325 West Gaines Street, Suite 224
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Form No. CSSM-1; effective November 2022; Incorporated in Rule 6A-6.0791, F.A.C.




Parental Rights in Education Policy

WHEREAS, The 2022 Florida Legislature passed House Bill 1557, Parental Rights in
Education which Governor Ron DeSantis signed into law on March 28, 2022 with an effective
date of July 1, 2022.

WHEREAS, This Policy is to ensure the charter school governing board (the “Governing
Board”) will comply with the newly amended Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, relating to student
welfare and procedures for notifying a student’s parent if there is a change in the student’s services
or monitoring related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and the
school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student.

WHEREAS, This Policy also provides the procedural requirements for the Governing
Board and the relationship/duties of the School Board which serves as the Governing Board’s
sponsor in relation to the parents fundamental right of parents to make decisions regarding the
upbringing and control of their children. Nothing in this Policy is intended to prohibit parents from
accessing any of their student’s education and health records created, maintained, or used by the
Governing Board, as required by Section 1002.22(2), Florida Statutes.

NOW THEREFORE, The Governing Board, respecting and reinforcing the fundamental
rights of parents to make decisions and control of their children and as required by Section 1001.42,
Florida Statutes and further enumerated in Sections 1002.20 and 1014.04, Florida Statutes provides
the following:

1. Notification Requirements

The Governing Board shall notify and provide parents/guardians of the following
information and services offered at the School at the beginning of each academic school year:

a. That classroom instruction by school personnel or third parties on sexual orientation or
gender identity may not occur in kindergarten through grade 3 or in a manner that is not
age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate for students in accordance with state
standards.

b. Each health care service offered at their student’s school and the option to withhold consent
or decline any specific service.

c. Provide an option that parental consent to a health care service does not waive a parent’s
right to access his or her student’s educational or health records or to be notified about a
change in his or her student’s services or monitoring.

d. Require consent from the parent/guardian before administering a student well-being
questionnaire or health screening form to a student in kindergarten through grade 3.

II. Parent Grievance Procedures

In the event a parent/guardian feels that any of the above actions in Section I(a-d) of this
Policy has or has not occurred, the parent shall first email the principal or his or her designee
regarding concerns which is believed to occur within his or her student’s school.
Page 1 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



Upon receipt of the email and/or written correspondence from the student’s
parent/guardian, the principal or his or her designee shall immediately cause to be investigated
whether a violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes has occurred. The principal or his or her
designee shall, within seven (7) calendar days after notification by the parent, provide a written
summary of the investigative findings and any steps to be taken and available to both the School
and the parent.

If the parent/guardian, within thirty (30) days after notification to the principal or his or her
designee of the alleged violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes, by the parent that the
concern remains unresolved, the Governing Board shall appoint a third party (other than the
principal or his or her designee) to investigate whether a violation of Section 1001.42, Florida
Statutes has occurred or if there is a change in the student’s services or monitoring related to the
student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and/or the school’s ability to provide
a safe and supportive learning environment for the student and such change has not been properly
communicated to the Parent.

The Governing Board shall receive the summary of findings from the third party and report
the findings to the School Board for the School Board to make a final determination of whether a
violation of Section 1001.42, Florida Statutes has occurred or if there is a change in the student’s
services or monitoring related to the student’s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being
and/or the school’s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student
and such change has not been properly communicated to the Parent.

If a concern is not resolved by the School Board, a parent may:

a. Request the Commissioner of Education to appoint a special magistrate who is a member
of The Florida Bar in good standing and who has at least 5 years’ experience in
administrative law; or

1. The special magistrate shall determine facts relating to the dispute over the School’s
and School Board’s procedure or practice, consider information provided by the
school, and render a recommended decision for resolution to the State Board of
Education within 30 days after receipt of the request by the parent.

ii.  The State Board of Education must approve or reject the recommended decision at
its next regularly scheduled meeting that is more than 7 calendar days and no more
than 30 days after the date the recommended decision is transmitted.

iii.  The costs of the special magistrate shall be borne by the school district.

b. Bring an action against the school district to obtain a declaratory judgment that the school
district procedure or practice violates this paragraph and seek injunctive relief. A court may
award damages and shall award reasonable attorney fees and court costs to a parent who
receives declaratory or injunctive relief.

I11. Required Communication from Charter School

Page 2 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



In the event a charter school principal or the principal's designee is directed to notify a
parent by the Governing Board pursuant to this Policy, the charter school principal or the
principal's designee shall make a reasonable attempt to meet and with the student have the student
discuss the issues relating to their upbringing with their parents prior to the formal written
notification to the student's parent/guardian.

For purposes of this policy, “a reasonable attempt to notify” means the exercise of
reasonable diligence and care by the principal or the principal’s designee to make contact with the
student’s parent, guardian, or other known contact whom the student’s parent or guardian has
authorized to receive notifications.

At a minimum, the principal or the principal’s designee must take the following actions:

a. Use available methods of communication to contact the student’s parent, guardian,
or other known emergency contact, including but not limited to, telephone calls,
text messages, e-mails, and voice mail messages following the notification of a
when there is a change in the student’ s services or monitoring related to the
student’ s mental, emotional, or physical health or well-being and/or the school’

s ability to provide a safe and supportive learning environment for the student.

b. Document the method and number of attempts made to contact the student’s parent,

guardian, or other known emergency contact, and the outcome of each attempt.

A principal or his or her designee who successfully notifies any other known emergency
contact may share only the information necessary to alert such contact that the parent or caregiver

must be contacted. All such information must be in compliance with federal and state law.

IV. Delayed Communication from Charter School

The principal or the principal’s designee may delay notification pursuant to this Policy if:

a. The principal or the principal’s designee deems the delay to be in the student’s best
interest and if there is knowledge, suspicion, or reason to suspect that such
notification may result in abuse, abandonment, or neglect; or

b. The principal or the principal’s designee reasonably believes that such delay is
necessary to avoid jeopardizing the health and safety of the student.

V. Conflict of Law

This policy is intended to supplement Sections 1001.41, 1002.20 and 1014.04, Florida Statutes.
If there is any provision of this policy which conflicts with and Florida Statute, the Florida Statute
shall control. In the event the Department of Education updates, as necessary, school counseling
frameworks and standards; educator practices and professional conduct principles; and any other
student services personnel guidelines, standards, or frameworks in accordance with the
requirements of this act, the Governing Board shall adopt and incorporate such updated

Page 3 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



frameworks and standards in compliance with this Policy, Florida Administrative Code, and
Florida Statutes.

VI Effective Date.

This policy became effective July 1, 2022. The Governing Board reserves the right to
change provisions of this Policy at any time in the future.

Page 4 of 4

2103126v1 980058.0346



